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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We refer to (1) Highwoods Properties, Inc. as theorhpany,” (2) Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerstag the Operating
Partnership,” (3) the Company’s common stock asi@mn Stock,” (4) the Company’s preferred stock Rieferred Stock,”Y) the Operatin
Partnership’s common partnership interests as “Comiwnits,” (6) the Operating Partnership’s prefdrpartnership interests afreferre
Units” and (7) inservice properties (excluding rental residentiats)rto which the Company and/or the Operating riRaghip have title at
100.0% ownership rights as the “Wholly Owned Pr&psr”

The information furnished in the accompanying Cdidated Financial Statements reflects all adjustisi¢consisting of normal recurri
accruals) that are, in our opinion, necessary fairgpresentation of the aforementioned finanstatements for the interim period.

The aforementioned financial statements shoulcehd in conjunction with the notes to Consolidatewfcial Statements, Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &wekults of Operations and Risk Factors include@iheand in our 2007 Annual Report
Form 10-K.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share andhpee amounts)

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Assets:
Real estate assets, at ct
Land $ 360,83t $ 356,19¢
Buildings and tenant improvemer 2,743,65! 2,701,00
Development in proces 107,12¢ 101,66:
Land held for development 96,83¢ 103,36!
3,308,46. 3,262,22!
Less-accumulated depreciation (664,944 (647,68
Net real estate assets 2,643,51! 2,614,54.
Real estate and other assets, net, held fol 18,29¢ 18,30¢
Cash and cash equivalel 6,59¢ 3,14(
Restricted cas 13,86: 15,89¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,038 $985, respectivel 20,78: 23,52
Notes receivable, net of allowance of $157 and $&ectively 3,03¢ 5,22¢
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwaloce of $667 and $440,
respectively 76,71¢ 74,31
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat 58,05¢ 58,04¢
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdatad amortizatiol 72,69: 72,00%
Prepaid expenses and other assets 44,26 41,95:
Total Assets $ 2,957,81 $ 2,926,95!
Liabilities, Minority Interest and Stockholders' Eq uity:
Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,703,231 $ 1,641,98
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and othetitied 142,13¢ 157,76¢
Financing obligations 35,29¢ 35,07
Total Liabilities 1,880,67. 1,834,82.
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note
Minority interest 67,59¢ 70,09¢

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awtbdrshares
8 5/8% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSHaquidation
preference $1,000 per share), 82,937 shares issukd
outstanding at both March 31, 2008 and Decembe?2@17 82,931 82,931
8% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred SKlayaiiation
preference $25 per share), 2,100,000 shares issukd
outstanding at both March 31, 2008 and Decembe?2@17 52,50( 52,50(
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares

57,309,347 and 57,167,193 shares issued and oditsfeat

March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respect 57:¢ 572
Additional paic-in capital 1,447,95! 1,448,05!
Distributions in excess of net earnir (572,59) (561,09
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,82¢) (93¢€)

Total Stockholders' Equity 1,009,54' 1,022,03;
Total Liabilities, Minority Interest and StockholdeEquity $ 2,957,81 $ 2,926,95!

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@sstents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen
Depreciation and amortizatic
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Interest expenses:
Contractua

Amortization of deferred financing cos
Financing obligations

Other income:
Interest and other income

Income before disposition of property, insurance ga, minority interest and
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Gains on disposition of property, r
Gain from property insurance settlem
Minority interest
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:

Income from discontinued operations, net of miryariteresi
Gains on sales of discontinued operations, netiobrity interest

Net income
Dividends on preferred stock

Net income available for common stockholders

Net income per common shar«- basic:

Income from continuing operatio
Income from discontinued operations

Net income
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic

Net income per common share - diluted:

Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operations

Net income
Weighted average common shares outstanding - dilute
Dividends declared per common share

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigstents.
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Three Months Ended
March 31,

2008 2007

114,78 $ 106,10t

39,12¢ 37,93¢
31,04 28,96¢
9,711 10,91
79,88( 77,81
23,46 22,68¢
63¢ 56€
74C 992
24,84 24,24’
802 1,514
80z 1,514
10,86 5,56%
— 16,74:

— 4,12¢
(837) (2,580)
1,98¢ 9,717
12,01« 33,57
14€ 72t
3,48¢ 18,26
3,62¢ 18,98;
15,64: 52,55¢
(2,839) (4,119

12,80t $ 48,44¢

0.1¢ $ 0.52
0.07 0.34
0.2t $ 0.8¢
56,72¢ 56,04(
0.1¢ $ 0.5z
0.0¢€ 0.3¢
02z $ 0.8t
61,05( 61,90(

042t $ 0.42¢
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2008

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Accum-
ulated Distri-
Other butions
Number of Additional Compre- in Excess
Common Common Series A Series B Paid-In hensive of Net
Shares Stock Preferred Preferred Capital Loss Earnings Total

Balance at December 31, 2007 57,167,19 $ 572 $ 82937 $ 52,50( $ 1,448,05' $ (939)$ (561,099 $ 1,022,03:
Issuance of Common Stock, net (24,229 — I — (686) I — (686)
Common Stock dividends — — — — — — (24,309 (24,309
Preferred Stock dividends — — — — — — (2,839 (2,839
Adjustment to minority interest of

unitholders in the Operating

Partnershiy — — — — (1,637 — — (1,637
Issuance of restricted stock, net 166,37 — I — — I — —
Amortization of restricted stock and stock

options — 1 — — 2,22¢ — — 2,221
Comprehensive incom

Net income — — — — — — 15,64: 15,64

Other comprehensive income/(loss) — — — — — (890) — (890
Total comprehensive income 14,75:
Balance at March 31, 2008 57,309,34 $ 57 $ 82,93 $ 52,50( $ 1,447,95 $ (1,82 % (572,593 % 1,009,54!

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@ssients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activitie:

Depreciatior
Amortization of lease commissio
Amortization of lease incentive
Amortization of restricted stock and stock optit
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive
Net gains on disposition of prope!
Gain from property insurance settlem
Minority interest
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia
Change in financing obligatior
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accrued straigt-line rents receivabl
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiedil
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Additions to real estate assets and deferred lgasists
Proceeds from disposition of real estate as
Proceeds from property insurance settlen
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated afities
Net repayments in notes receiva

Contributions to unconsolidated affiliat
Changes in restricted cash and other investingiet

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities:

Distributions paid on Common Stock and Common L

Dividends paid on Preferred Sto

Distributions to minority partner in consolidateffilate

Net proceeds from the sale of Common Si

Repurchase of Common Un

Borrowings on revolving credit facilit

Repayments of revolving credit facili

Borrowings on mortgages and notes payi

Repayments of mortgages and notes pay

Contributions from minority interest partn
Additions to deferred financing costs

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Three Months Ended

March 31,

2008 2007
15,64: $ 52,55¢
27,35¢ 26,13¢

3,751 3,607
222 222
2,227 1,132
63¢€ 56€

80 142
(3,726 (36,486
— (4,125
1,091 4,11¢
(1,989 (9,717
22¢F (1)
1,89¢ 1,962
2,73¢ (1,057
(3,316 227
(2,407) (1,572
(23,625 (11,965
20,81« 25,74«
(55,539 (66,27%)
6,07z 65,02¢
— 4,94(

804 6,38:
2,19( 57¢€
(841) —
2,387 (15,58:)
(44,920 (4,930
(25,98:) (25,766
(2,83¢) (4,117
(25€) (92€)
(68€) 98¢
(3,299 (27,402

203,20( 106,40(

(184,100 (416,900

144,57¢ 401,57:

(102,45¢) (68,696

— 1,04t
(602) (2,776
27,56 (36,577
3,45¢ (15,769
3,14( 16,69(
6,59t $ 927
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalizsedludes cash distributions to
owners of sold properties accounted for as finaggeof $200 and $663 for
2008 and 2007, respective $ 29,977 $ 22,66¢

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anthfincing activities:

The following table summarizes the net asset aitgquis and dispositions subject to mortgage notagaple and other nocast
transactions. There were no non-cash investingdiaadcing activities during the three months entftadch 31, 2007.

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007

Assets:
Prepaid expenses and other assets $ (561) —

$ (561) $ —
Liabilities:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedil $ 40¢ —

$ 40¢ $ —
Minority Interest and Stockholders’ Equity $ 970 $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2008
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)
(Unaudited)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdidsted subsidiaries (the "Company"), is a fullyeigrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust ("RElfdt operates in the southeastern and midwesteited States. The Company cond
virtually all of its activities through HighwoodseRlty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Partngr§h At March 31, 2008, the Comps
and/or the Operating Partnership wholly owned: Bitdervice office, industrial and retail properties; f@ntal residential units; 616 acre:
undeveloped land suitable for future developmehtwiich 475 acres are considered core holdings; amddditional 12 properties un
development.

At March 31, 2008, the Company owned all of thefgmed partnership interests (“Preferred Unitg)d 93.5% of the comm
partnership interests ("Common Units") in the OfiacaPartnership. Limited partners (including cirtafficers and directors of the Compa
own the remaining Common Units. Generally, the @peg Partnership is required to redeem each Comldronat the request of the holi
thereof for cash equal to the value of one shatb@fCompany’s Common Stock, $.01 par value (theni@®on Stock”)based on the avere
of the market price for the 10 trading days immgthapreceding the notice date of such redemptooyided that the Company at its op!
may elect to acquire any such Common Units predeioteredemption for cash or one share of CommaelStThe Common Units owned
the Company are not redeemable. During the threethmaended March 31, 2008, the Company redeeme@ll®&ommon Units for $3
million in cash, which increased the percentage&Cofmmon Units owned by the Company from 93.3% atebdwer 31, 2007 to 93.5%
March 31, 2008. Preferred Units in the Operatingrieaship were issued to the Company in conneactiith the Companys Preferred Stot
offerings in 1997 and 1998 (the “Preferred StocKkhe net proceeds raised from each of the Pref&teck issuances were contributed by
Company to the Operating Partnership in exchangéh® Preferred Units. The terms of each serieRreferred Units parallel the terms of
respective Preferred Stock as to dividends, ligiodaand redemption rights.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparegdcordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accauntrrinciples (“GAAP”).As
more fully described in Notes 4 and 10, as requing&tatement of Financial Accounting Standard Nit, “Accounting for the Impairment
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” (“SFAS No. 144'the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2237 revised from previous
reported amounts to reflect in real estate andratiseets held for sale those properties held flr saMarch 31, 2008. The Consolide
Statement of Income for the three months ended Mat¢ 2007 was also revised from previously rembemounts to reflect in discontint
operations the operations of any property soldetd For sale in the first three months of 2008.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ther&ing Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries @nage subsidiaries in which
own a majority voting interest with the ability wontrol operations of the subsidiaries and wheresubstantive participating rights
substantive kick out rights have been granted ¢ontinority interest holders. In accordance with Egimgy Issues Task Force (“EITFI$sue
No. 045, “Determining Whether a General Partner or the Géiadners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partipgrsh Similar Entity Whe
the Limited Partners Have Certain Righta@ consolidate partnerships, joint ventures andtdignliability companies when we control
major operating and financial policies of the gnthirough majority ownership or in our capacitygeneral partner or managing membe
addition, we consolidate those entities, if anyerehwe are deemed to be the primary beneficiay wariable interest entity (as defined
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Imestation No. 46 (revised December 2003Johsolidation of Variable Intere
Entities” (“FIN 46(R)")). All significant intercomany transactions and accounts have been eliminated.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The accompanying unaudited financial informationttie opinion of management, contains all adjustméncluding normal recurrir
accruals) necessary for a fair presentation offimancial position, results of operations and ctisivs. We have condensed or omitted ce
notes and other information from the interim fin@hstatements presented in this Quarterly Reporffaerm 10Q. These financial stateme
should be read in conjunction with our 2007 Anriraport on Form 10-K.

The preparation of financial statements in accordamith GAAP requires management to make estimatdsassumptions that affect
amounts reported in the financial statements andrapanying notes. Actual results could differ frimse estimates.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents cash deposits thaggalbyl restricted or held by third parties on oahdlf. They include security deposits fi
sales contracts on residential condominiums, coastm-related escrows, property disposition proceedasde and designated or intende
fund future taxdeferred exchanges of qualifying real estate inments, escrows and reserves for debt service egtate taxes and prope
insurance established pursuant to certain mortfiagecing arrangements, and deposits given to lenteun-encumber secured properties.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected and expects to contingealify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 86€hefinternal Revenue Code
1986, as amended (the “CodeA. corporate REIT is a legal entity that holds reatate assets and, through the payment of divida
stockholders, is generally permitted to reduce \widhthe payment of federal and state income tatethe corporate level. To maint
qualification as a REIT, the Company is requiredliistribute to its stockholders at least 90.0%tsfannual REIT taxable income, excluc
capital gains. Continued qualification as a REIpefeds on the Comparg/ability to satisfy the dividend distribution tesstock ownersh
requirements and various other qualification teséscribed in the Code. If the Company fails tolifpias a REIT in any taxable year, it will
subject to federal and state income taxes and ro&yo@ able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequemtble years. We conduct cer
business activities through a taxable REIT subsjdias permitted under the Code. The taxable REBSigliary is subject to federal and s
income taxes on its net taxable income. We recoodigions for income taxes, to the extent requiwader SFAS No. 109,Atcounting fo
Income Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109"based on its income recognized for financial statgnpurposes, including the effects of tempc
differences between such income and the amoungnéoed for tax purposes. Additionally, beginningiJary 1, 2007, we began to recog!
and measure the effects of uncertain tax positimmer FASB Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48"Atcounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax
an interpretation of SFAS No. 109.” See Note 13discussion of the effect of FIN 48 on our accougpfior income taxes.

9
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Minority Interest

Minority interest in the accompanying Consolidatddancial Statements relates primarily to the owhigr by various individuals a
entities other than the Company of Common Unitshim Operating Partnership. In addition, minorityenest is also recorded for the 50
interest in a consolidated affiliate, Highwoods-kirAssociates, LLC (“Markel”)the equity interest owned by a third party in asmidate:
venture formed during 2006 with Real Estate ExcleaBgrvices (“REES”)and the 7% equity interest owned by a third pantyPiazi
Residential, LLC, a consolidated joint venture fedvin February 2007 related to a residential coridioim project, as described below. As
March 31, 2008, minority interest in the OperatiPartnership consisted of approximately 4.0 millldé@mmon Units, which had an aggre(
market value of $122.7 million based on the $31p6r share closing price of the Common Stock asiof glate. Minority interest in the |
income of the Operating Partnership is compute@gyying the weighted average percentage of Comurits not owned by the Compe
during the period (as a percent of the total nundfesutstanding Common Units) to the Operating fargthips net income after deduct
distributions on Preferred Units. The result is #meount of minority interest expense (or income&prded for the period. In addition, whe
minority unitholder redeems a Common Unit for arshaf Common Stock or cash, the minority interesieduced and the Compasyhare i
the Operating Partnership is increased. At theadfnelach reporting period, the Company determinesatinount that represents the minc
unitholders’share of the net assets (at book value) of the &ipgrPartnership and compares this amount to therity interest balance tt
resulted from transactions during the period inir@vminority interest. The Company adjusts the mitganterest liability to the comput
share of net assets with an offsetting adjustmetite Company’s paid in capital.

The organizational documents of Markel requireghsty to be liquidated through the sale of itseéssipon reaching December 31, 2
As controlling partner, we have an obligation tas® this propertpwning entity to distribute proceeds of liquidatitmthe minority intere
partner in these partially owned properties onlyhé net proceeds received by the entity from tie ef our assets warrant a distributiol
determined by the agreement. This estimated sedtiewalue is based on estimated third party coraiide realizable by the entity upol
hypothetical disposition of the properties and é$ of all other assets and liabilities. The actaalount of any distributions to the mino
interest holder in this entity is difficult to pretl due to many factors, including the inherent antainty of real estate sales. If the engty’
underlying assets are worth less than the underlliabilities on the date of such liquidation, wewld have no obligation to remit
consideration to the minority interest holder.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we entered into greament with REES to ground lease certain devedophand to special purpose enti
owned by REES. Under the agreement, REES will douter 7% of the costs of constructing propertieghos land not to exceed $4.0 milli
outstanding at any time. REES will generally eamagreed fixed return for its economic investmeantthese entities. The balance
development costs will be funded by third partystamction loans. If third party construction loaars not obtained, the remaining 93% of ¢
are loaned to the entities by us. Subject to theraise of a purchase option, it is expected thawlleacquire the properties in the future a
amount generally equal to the actual developmestscimcurred plus the fixed return earned by RE&Sit6 economic investment in th
entities. As we are considered the primary beraficiwe consolidate these entities in accordante WIiN 46(R). These entities will be re-
evaluated for primary beneficiary status when théties undertake additional activity, such as plgcthe development projects $ervice
REESS investment in the entities is included in minpiiiterest as shown in the tables below. All cdstéorm the entities and other rela
fees have been expensed as incurred.

10



Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

In the first quarter of 2007, our taxable REIT ddizsy formed Plaza Residential, LLC with Domini®artners, LLC (“Dominion”)Plaz:
Residential was formed to develop and sell 13%desdial condominiums to be constructed above aleotbwer being developed by us
Raleigh, NC. Dominion has a 7% equity interesttie foint venture, will perform development servides the joint venture for a marl
development fee and guarantees 40.0% of the catisinufinancing. Dominion will also receive 35.0%the net profits from the joint ventt
once the partners have received distributions etguédeir equity plus a 12.0% return on their egguWWe are consolidating this majority owi
joint venture and intercompany transactions hawenlbaiminated in the Consolidated Financial StatgmeAt March 31, 2008, binding s
contracts had been executed for all of the resiglectndominiums. $4.1 million of deposits relatedhese contracts (naefundable unless \
default in our obligation to deliver the units) hbhden received and are reflected in restricted @dih a corresponding amount in ot
liabilities. We will account for the sale of thesiential condominiums in accordance with SFAS B6, “Accounting for Sales of Re
Estate” (“SFAS No. 66”) and will record the salelsem the related closings take place.

Following is minority interest as reflected in dionsolidated Statements of Income and Consolidaédahce Sheets:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007
Amount shown as minority interest in continuing gi®ns(1) $ (837 $ (2,580
Amount related to income from discontinued operst (12) (58)
Amount related to gains on sales of discontinuestafons (243 (1,480
Total minority interest in net income $ (1,09 $ (4,119

(1) Minority interest related to the consolidated eesitother than the Operating Partnership amourtekD2 million for each of the thr
months ended March 31, 2008 and 2(

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership $ 60,85: $ 63,29:
Minority interest in Marke 3,38¢ 3,44¢
Minority interest in REES 2,561 2,561
Minority interest in Plaza Residential 797 797
Total minority interest $ 67,59¢ $ 70,09¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per siire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Impact of Newly Adopted and Issued Accounting Stanakds

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement N@, ‘Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157Which defines fair valu
establishes a framework for using fair value to soea assets and liabilities, and expands disclesabaut fair value measurements.
statement applies whenever other statements regupermit assets or liabilities to be measurefhiatvalue. SFAS No. 157 became effec
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 20&&ept for nonfinancial assets and liabilities @ recognized or disclosed at fair valu
the financial statements on a nonrecurring baeiswhich application has been deferred for one .y&r adopted SFAS No. 157 in the |
guarter of 2008 (See Note 9).

In November 2006, the FASB ratified EITF Issue R6-8, “Applicability of the Assessment of a BuyeContinuing Investment unc
FASB Statement No. 66 for Sales of Condominium$THENo. 068 provided additional guidance on whether the selle condominium ur
is required to evaluate the buyeKcontinuing investment under SFAS No. 66 in otderecognize profit from the sale under the pemagato
completion method. The EITF concluded that bothithger's initial and continuing investment must meet thiteda in SFAS No. 66 in ord
for condominium sale profits to be recognized urttierpercentage of completion method. Sales of @mimiums not meeting the continu
investment test must be accounted for under thesiemethod. We adopted EITF No. 86n the first quarter of 2008 and such adoptia
not have an effect on our financial condition @ulés of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢“Hair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finankiabilities” (“SFAS No
159"), which permits all entities to choose to measurgildk items at fair value at specified electionedatWe adopted SFAS No. 159
January 1, 2008 and such adoption did not havéfect ®n our financial condition or results of ogons.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141)siness Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141(R)Which addresses principles
requirements for how an acquirer recognizes andsuorea in its financial statements the identifisddsets acquired, the liabilities assumec
any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. SFA& N41(R) becomes effective for us on January 0920We are currently evaluating
impact SFAS No. 141(R) will have on our financiahdition and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160ntdatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financiat8&ments -an amendment
ARB No. 51" (“SFAS No. 160")which establishes accounting and presentation atdadfor a noncontrolling interest in a subsidianc
amends certain of ARB No. 5l tonsolidation procedures for consistency witteotiusiness combination standards. SFAS No. 166nhe:
effective for us on January 1, 2009. We are culyentaluating the impact SFAS No. 160 will have @ur financial condition and results
operations.

In December 2007, the FASB ratified EITF Issue D66 “Accounting for the Sale of Real Estate SubjechtoRequirements of FAS
Statement No. 66Accounting for Sales of Real Estate, When the Agreement Includes a Buy-Sell Clause” TEENo. 07-6"),which address:
whether a buysell clause represents a prohibited form of coimiginvolvement that would preclude patrtial sale @nofit recognition pursua
to SFAS No. 66. We adopted EITF No. 67n the first quarter of 2008 and such adoptiahrtit have an effect on our financial conditio
results of operations.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Dusakes about Derivative Instruments and Hedgingviiets” (“SFAS No. 161},
which amends and expands the disclosure requirsnoéi@FAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Ingtnents and Hedging ActivitiesThis
statement is effective for financial statementsiask for fiscal years and interim periods beginnafter November 15, 2008, with ee
application encouraged. SFAS No. 161 becomes aféeftir us on January 1, 2009. We are currenthyfuatmg the impact SFAS No. 161 v
have on our financial condition and results of agiens.

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES

We have retained equity interests ranging from %2t6 50.0% in various joint ventures with unrelatedestors. We account for ¢
unconsolidated joint ventures using the equity metbf accounting. As a result, the assets andlilieki of these joint ventures for which
use the equity method of accounting are not induate our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

During the third quarter of 2006, three of our joientures made distributions aggregating $17.0anibks a result of a refinancing of d
related to various properties held by the jointtuess. We received 50.0% of such distributions. @Asesult of these distributions,
investment account in these joint ventures becaggative. The new debt is noeeourse; however, we and our partner have guardrtthe
debt and have contractual obligations to suppe@rijdmt ventures, which are included in the Guagastand Other Obligations table in Note
Therefore, in accordance with SOP 78-9, “Accounforginvestments in Real Estate Venturesg recorded the distributions as a reductic
the investment account and included the resultegative investment balances of $10.9 million incarts payable, accrued expenses and
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet atdWie81, 2008.

Four of our joint ventures are consolidated. ¥ Harborview Plaza, LP is accounted for as arfgiag arrangement pursuant to Sf

No. 66, as described in Note 3 to the Consolid&tiedncial Statements in our 2007 Annual Report omF1(-K. Markel, REES and Pla
Residential, which are discussed in Note 1, aré eansolidated.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates as of M&dt, 2008 and combined summarized income statsnfenbur unconsolidated jo
ventures for the three months ended March 31, 20082007 were as follows:

Ownership

Joint Venture Location of Properties Interest
Board of Trade Investment Compa Kansas City, MC 49.0(%
Kessinger/Hunter, LL( Kansas City, MC 26.5(%
4600 Madison Associates, LL Kansas City, MC 12.5(%
Plaza Colonnade, LL! Kansas City, MC 50.00%
Dallas County Partners I, L Des Moines, IA 50.0(%
Dallas County Partners Il, L Des Moines, IA 50.0(%
Dallas County Partners lll, L Des Moines, IA 50.0(%
Fountain Thret Des Moines, 1A 50.0(%
RRHWoods, LLC Des Moines, 1A 50.0(%
Highwoods DLF 98/29, LP Atlanta, GA; Charlotte, NC; Greensboro, NC;

Raleigh, NC; Orlando, FL; Baltimore, M 22.81%
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L Atlanta, GA; Greensboro, NC; Orlando, 42.9%
Highwoods KC Glenridge Office, L Atlanta, GA 40.0(%
Highwoods KC Glenridge Land, L Atlanta, GA 40.0(%
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC Orlando, FL 40.0(%
Concourse Center Associates, L Greensboro, N( 50.0(%
Highwoods DLF Forum, LL( Raleigh, NC 25.0(%

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007
Income Statements:
Revenues $ 38,52¢ $ 38,01%
Expenses:
Operating expenst 18,43: 15,16
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,45¢ 7,25
Interest expense and loan cost amortization 8,48 8,63
Total expenses 34,37¢ 31,04¢
Income before disposition of property 4,157 6,96¢
Gains on disposition of property — 20,62:
Net income $ 4,15 $ 27,59(
Our share of:
Net income) $ 1,98¢ $ 9,71
Depreciation and amortization (real estate related) $ 2,93t $ 2,86¢€
Interest expense and loan cost amortization $ 3,52¢ $ 3,661
Gains on disposition of property $ — % 7,15¢

(1) Our share of net income differs from our weightedrage ownership percentage in the joint ventunes’income due to our purch
accounting and other related adjustme
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
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2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

On September 27, 2004, we and an affiliate of @ra$l Inc. (“Crosland”Yormed Weston Lakeside, LLC, in which we had a %&
ownership interest. Crosland managed and operhiggbint venture, which constructed 332 rentaldestial units in three buildings at a tc
cost of approximately $33.7 million. Crosland reeei 3.25% of all project costs other than land agweelopment fee and 3.5% of the g
revenue of the joint venture in management feespwieided certain development services for thegmofnd received a fee equal to 1.0¢
all project costs excluding land. We accountedtfids joint venture using the equity method of acdtg. On February 22, 2007, the jc
venture sold the 332 rental residential units toi@ party for gross proceeds of $45.0 million goadd off all of its outstanding debt and vari
development related costs. The joint venture resalgain of $11.3 million in the first quarter28f07 related to this sale and we recorded
million as our proportionate share through equityearnings of unconsolidated affiliates. Our shafréhe gain was less than 50.0% du
Croslands preferred return as the developer. We receivgdeggte net distributions of $6.2 million. Westaskeside, LLC has been dissolv

We have a 22.81% interest in a joint venture (“DDRwith Schweiz-Deutschland-USA Dreilander Betgiing Objekt DLF 98/2%/alkel
Fink-KG ("DLF"). We are the property manager andsieg agent of DLF § properties and receive customary managementeasihy fee
On March 12, 2007, DLF | sold five properties tthiad party for gross proceeds of $34.2 million aadorded a gain of $9.3 million relatec
this sale. We recorded $2.1 million as our propodie share of this gain through equity in earnin§sunconsolidated affiliates. (
May 21, 2007, DLF | acquired Eola Park Centre, Q080 square foot office building in Orlando, Fttj for $39.3 million. In June 2007,
joint venture obtained a $27.7 million loan secubsdEola Park Centre. Simultaneously with DI's acquisition of Eola Park Centre,
separately acquired an adjacent parcel of developtaed for $2.0 million on a wholly-owned basis.

In March 2008, we and an affiliate of DLF formechaw joint venture, Highwoods DLF Forum, LLC, in whiwe have a 25.0C
ownership interest. Upon formation of this joinintare, we contributed $0.8 million of cash. On A@ri2008, Highwoods DLF Forum, LL
acquired The Forum, which is a 635,000 square défate park in Raleigh, North Carolina, for appnmdtely $113 million. We contributed
additional $11.5 million to Highwoods DLF Forum, ClLand, simultaneously with the acquisition of Therumn, the joint venture obtaine:
$67.5 million secured loan. We are the property agen and leasing agent for the office park andiveceustomary management fees
leasing commissions. We will account for this ursmdidated joint venture using the equity methodafounting.

For additional information regarding our other istreents in unconsolidated and other affiliates, et 2 to the Consolidated Finan
Statements in our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

3. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

For information regarding sale transactions thatehlaeen accounted for as financing arrangementsrymatragraphs 25 through 2<
SFAS No. 66, see Notes 5 and 9 herein and Notdt®tG@onsolidated Financial Statements in our 20@7ual Report on Form 10-K.
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4 . INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES AND IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS
Dispositions
Gains from dispositions not classified as discargthoperations consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007
Gains on disposition of land $ — 8 15,83t
Gains on disposition of depreciable properties — 90¢
Total $ — $ 16,74

Net gains on sales of discontinued operationsphetinority interest, consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007
Gains on disposition of depreciable properties $ 3,72¢ $ 19,74:
Allocable minority interest (243 (1,48))
Total $ 3,487 $ 18,26

See Note 10 for information on discontinued opereti
The above gains on land and depreciable propénihsde deferred gain recognition from prior sales.
Development

We currently have under development 12 office, stdal and retail properties aggregating 2.1 millisquare feet and 139 feale
residential units. The aggregate cost of these gutigs is currently expected to total approximat$8A3 million when fully leased a
completed, of which $215 million was incurred asvtrch 31, 2008. The weighted average lpaesing of such development projects was
at March 31, 2008. Six of these properties aggmegat.2 million square feet and $127 million tolalestment have been completed
transferred to completed real estate assets austimes prior to March 31, 2008, but had notrgathed projected 95%tabilized occupanc
The remaining development properties are still urmmstruction and are included in Development iiacEss in the Consolidated Bala
Sheet.

In addition to the development projects discusdeal/@, during the three months ended March 31, 2fQ8, properties were comple!
and placed in service. The weighted averagdegasing of these properties was 88% and the tota@stment aggregated approximately $
million at March 31, 2008.

Impairments of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS No. 144 also requires that a Idivigd asset classified as held for sale be measatréite lower of the carrying value or fair ve
less cost to sell. During the three months endectMal, 2008 and 2007, there were no propertias floelsale which had a carrying value
was greater than fair value less cost to sellefioee, no impairment loss was recognized in thesGlidated Statements of Income for the t
months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007.
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4. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES AND IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS- Continued

SFAS No. 144 also requires that if indicators op&inment exist, the carrying value of a loinged asset classified as held for use
compared to the sum of its estimated undiscountedd cash flows. If the carrying value is gredtem the sum of its undiscounted future
flows, an impairment loss should be recognizedtlierexcess of the carrying amount of the asset itwvestimated fair value. In each of
three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, noatatis of impairment existed for assets held fer U$erefore, no impairment losses v
recorded in the three months ended March 31, 2662807.

5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS

Our consolidated mortgages and notes payable ¢eds§the following at March 31, 2008 and Decenier2007:

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Secured mortgage loans $ 669,93. $ 665,31:
Unsecured loans 1,033,30° 976,67t
Total $ 1,703,231 $ 1,641,98

As of March 31, 2008, our secured mortgage loansevgecured by real estate assets with an aggregaepreciated book value
approximately $1.1 billion.

Our $450 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis initially scheduled to mature on May 1, 2088suming no default exists, we h
an option to extend the maturity date by one aolditi year. The interest rate is LIBOR plus 80 bpsists and the annual base facility fee i
basis points. The revolving credit facility had $2@illion of availability at March 31, 2008.

On March 22, 2007, the Operating Partnership is$4&® million aggregate principal amount of 5.85%té$¢ due March 15, 2017, ne
original issue discount of $1.2 million. We usee thet proceeds from the issuance of the notesp@myrborrowings outstanding under
unsecured norevolving credit facility that was obtained on Janu31, 2007 (which was subsequently terminated) wmder the revolvir
credit facility.

On June 5, 2007, two thrgear secured construction loans totaling $24.7ionilwith interest at 175 basis points over LIBORre
obtained by REES, a consolidated joint venture [$ste 1). Subsequently, on July 17, 2007, REESimbtian additional $13.7 million, three-
year secured construction loan with interest at h&5is points over LIBOR. In October 2007, REESdpaff one of the original secur
construction loans, which had accounted for $4 Wianiof the original $24.7 million. At March 310P8, $24.4 million was outstanding un
these two remaining loans.

On December 20, 2007, we closed a $70 million sstuevolving construction facility. The loan matsiren December 20, 2010. 7
interest rate is based on LIBOR plus 85 basis po#it March 31, 2008, there were no amounts outitgnon this revolving facility.

In December 2007, Plaza Residential, LLC, a codat#id joint venture (see Note 1), obtained a year, $34.1 million secur
construction loan with interest at 140 basis poawvsr LIBOR. At March 31, 2008, there was $2.5 imilloutstanding on this loan.

On February 1, 2008, we paid off at maturity $106llion of 7.125% unsecured notes using borrowingsler our revolving crec
facility. On February 26, 2008, we closed a $13miBion threeyear term loan that bears interest at LIBOR plu8 khdsis points. Procee
from this loan were used to reduce the outstanbdargowings under our revolving credit facility afad short-term investments.
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5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS - Continued

Our revolving credit facility, our term loan andetiindenture that governs the Operating Partnershaptstanding notes require ut
comply with customary operating covenants and warifinancial and operating ratios. We and the QpeydPartnership are each currentl
compliance with all such requirements.

Financing Obligations

Our financing obligations consisted of the follogiat March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007:

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
SF-HIW Harborview, LP financing obligatiam $ 16,78 $ 16,56¢
Tax increment financing obligatic(2) 17,39¢ 17,39¢
Capitalized ground lease obligati@n 1,12( 1,11C
Total $ 35,29t $ 35,07

(1) See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statemantsir 2007 Annual Report on Form KkOfor further discussion of this financi
obligation. See Note 9 for Fair Value Measuremésitidsure.

(2) In connection with tax increment financing for ctrastion of a public garage related to an officélding, we are obligated to pay fix
special assessments over ay2d+ period. The net present value of these assegsyaiscounted at 6.93% at the inception of thigation
which represents the interest rate on the undeylpond financing, is shown as a financing obligatio the Consolidated Balance Sh
We also receive special tax revenues and propextyetoates recorded in interest and other incorhghnare intended, but not guarant
to provide funds to pay the special assessm

On December 3, 2007, we acquired for $20.9 milliba remaining outstanding bonds, at par value, Were issued by a munici
authority in connection with this tax incrementditing. These available for sale securities areechiat estimated fair value w
unrealized gains or losses reported in other cohgm&ve income, in accordance with SFAS No. 11&ccbunting for Certai
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” SeeeNbtor Fair Value Measurement disclosure.

(3) Represents a capitalized lease obligation to thsoleof land on which we are constructing a nedding. We are obligated to make fi»
payments to the lessor through October 2022 ante#se provides for fixed price purchase optionhéninth and tenth years of the le
We intend to exercise the purchase option in otdggrevent an economic penalty related to conveytirgbuilding to the lessor at -
expiration of the lease. The net present valudefiked rental payments and purchase option thrdhg ninth year was calculated usit
discount rate of 7.1%. The assets and liabilitieden the capital lease are recorded at the lowehefpresent value of minimum le
payments or the fair value. The liability accreté@sh month for the difference between the inteston the financing obligation and
fixed payments. The accretion will continue urtii¢ iability equals the purchase option of the lanthe ninth year of the leas

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Compensation Programs

During the three months ended March 31, 2008, wetgd under our Amended and Restated 1994 StodkrOplan (the Stock Optiol
Plan”) 0.3 million stock options at an exercise price ¢qodhe closing market price of a share of our own stock on the date of grant. -
fair value of each option grant is estimated ondhee of grant using the Black-Scholes option pgamodel, which resulted in a weighted-
average grant date fair value per share of $3.18.a8%0 granted 0.09 million shares of tilveessed restricted stock and 0.07 million shari
performance-based and total return-based restristeck with a weightedverage grant date fair value per share of $30r@P $80.1¢
respectively. Shares of total retusased restricted stock issued in 2008 will gengnadist only to the extent our absolute total retiamthe
threeyear period ended December 31, 2010 is at least @2%oour total return exceeds 100% of the pe@ugrindex. See Note 6 to -
Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2007 AhRegort on Form 1@ for additional information regarding our equitycentive and oth
compensation plans.
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

During the three months ended March 31, 2008 afi¥ 2@e recognized approximately $2.2 million and2$million, respectively, «
stock-based compensation expense. As of March@®8,2here was $13.9 million of total unrecogniséatkbased compensation costs, wl
will be recognized over a weighted average remgicontractual term of 2.5 years.

7. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIA L INSTRUMENTS HELD FOR SALE

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (“AOCht)March 31, 2008 was $1.8 million and consistedeferred gains and losses fi
past cash flow hedging instruments, deferred lossesurrent cash flow hedges and the mark to madjeistment for bonds that are classi
as held for sale.

The amount of deferred gains and losses from et fflow hedging instruments which are being reghas interest expense over
terms of the related debt aggregated $0.8 millieee (Note 8). We expect that the portion of the dative loss recorded in AOCL
March 31, 2008 associated with these derivativeringents, which will be recognized as interest esgewithin the next 12 months, will
approximately $0.03 million.

In January 2008, we entered into two floating-tadl interest rate swaps for a oyear period with respect to an aggregate of $50an
of borrowings outstanding under our revolving ctddcility and other floating rate debt. These sw/dig the underlying LIBOR rate unc
which interest on such borrowings is based at 3.&6§9$30 million of borrowings and 3.24% for $20llon of borrowings. These swaps w
designated as hedges under SFAS No. 133. Accoyditigd swaps are being accounted for as cash fexngéds. We expect that the portiol
the cumulative loss recorded in AOCL at March 310& associated with these derivative instrumenisclwwill be recognized within the ne
12 months, will be $0.4 million. See Note 9 foriPdalue Measurement disclosure.

We currently have an investment in bonds that visneed by a municipal authority in connection wilk increment financing (see N
5). These bonds are currently being held for satkthus are being recorded at fair value with tfised recorded in AOCL. The amount
unrealized loss at March 31, 2008 was $0.6 mill®ee Note 9 for Fair Value Measurement disclosure.

8. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income represents net income the changes in certain amounts deferred in adeted other comprehens
income/(loss) related to hedging and other acéisithot reflected in the Consolidated Statement$nobme. The components of ot
comprehensive income are as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007

Net income $ 15,64: $ 52,55¢
Other comprehensive incorr

Unrealized loss on available for sale securi (561) —

Loss on cas-flow hedge (409) —

Amortization of hedging gains and losses includedther comprehensive income 80 142

Total other comprehensive (loss)/income (890) 142

Total comprehensive income $ 14,75 $ 52,70(
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9. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

As stated in Note 1, on January 1, 2008, we addpEAS No. 157 for our financial assets and liaksit Our adoption of SFAS No. 1
did not impact our financial position, results @ieoations or liquidity. In accordance with FASB f8faosition No. FAS 157-2,Effective Dat
of FASB Statement No. 157" (“FSP FAS 157-2Re elected to defer until January 1, 2009 the adomif SFAS No. 157 for all nonfinanc
assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are nobgmized or disclosed at fair value in the finahstatements on a recurring basis. The ado
of SFAS No. 157 for those assets and liabilitiethimithe scope of FSP FAS 127is not expected to have a material impact onfioancia
position, results of operations or liquidity.

SFAS No. 157 provides a framework for measuring\falue and requires expanded disclosure regafdingalue measurements. SF
No. 157 defines fair value as the price that wdnddreceived for an asset or the exit price thatlevdwe paid to transfer a liability in t
principal or most advantageous market in an ordgdpsaction between market participants on thesoreanent date. SFAS No. 157
establishes a fair value hierarchy which requiregmtity to maximize the use of observable inpwtsgre available. The following summari
the three levels of inputs required by the standaatiwe use to measure fair value, as well ass$isets and liabilities that we value using t
levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetliabilities. Our Level 1 assets are comprieéthvestments in marketal
securities which we use to pay benefits under efierded compensation plan. Our Level 1 liabilitgs our obligations to pay certain defe
compensation plan benefits whereby participantse hdesignated investment options (primarily mutuaids) to serve as the basis
measurement of the notional value of their accounts

Level 2.Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sscuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaorbe corroborated by observable market dataufwstantially the full term of the related as
or liabilities. Our Level 2 assets are bonds thatret routinely traded whose fair value is detewediusing an estimate of projected redem
value predicated upon quoted bid/ask prices foilaimunrated bonds. Our Level 2 liabilities areersst rate swaps whose fair valu
determined using a price model predicated uponrgbble market inputs.

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlm@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities. Our Level 3 liabilities consist of thrgght of our joint venture partner in SF-HIW Harbi@w, LP to put its 80% equity interest in SF-
HIW Harborview Plaza, LP to us in exchange for cashny time during the ongear period commencing September 11, 2014. Beazube
put option, this transaction is accounted for anancing transaction. Accordingly, the assets &abilities and operations related to
Harborview Plaza, the property owned by ISR Harborview Plaza, LP, including any new finamgiby the partnership, remain in
Consolidated Financial Statements. As a resulthese established a financing obligation equal ® et equity contributed by the ot
partner. At the end of each annual reporting peribd balance of the financing obligation is adidsto equal the greater of the orig
financing obligation or the current fair value dfetput option. Due to the lack of observable madkeites for the put option, we utiliz:
valuation model predicated upon capitalizationgated discounted cash flows, which take into actestimates such as future lease rollo
lease up activity and future expenditures, to dateuthe estimated fair value of the put optione Hstimated fair value of the put option
$15.9 million and $15.6 million at March 31, 2008daDecember 31, 2007, respectively. This amouradiisted by a related valuat
allowance account, which is being amortized prospely through September 2014 as interest expendi@ancing obligation. The amount
the valuation allowance account was $0.9 millio &1.0 million at March 31, 2008 and December 8D72 respectively. The amo!
amortized into interest expense from the valuattiowance was $0.03 million during the three mongisled March 31, 2008. For m
information regarding this joint venture, see N8t® the Consolidated Financial Statements in @072Annual Report on Form 10-K.

20



Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre data)

9. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - Continued

The following table sets forth the financial assatd liabilities as of March 31, 2008 that we meadiat fair value on a recurring basis
level within the fair value hierarchy. As requirby SFAS No. 157, assets and liabilities measurddiavalue are classified in their entir
based on the lowest level of input that is sigaificto their fair value measurement.

Fair Value Measurements Using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
Balance at for Identical Observable Unobservable
March 31, 2008 Assets Inputs Inputs
Assets
Marketable securitieq) $ 7228 $ 7228 $ — % —
Taxable bonds 20,35¢ — 20,35¢ _
Total Assets $ 2757¢ $ 7,228 $ 20,35 $ —
Liabilities
Interest rate swag $ 917 $ — 3 917 $ —
Deferred compensatic 7,22F 7,22¢ — —
Harborview financing obligatio 15,86¢ — — 15,86¢
Harborview valuation allowance 912 — — 912
Total Liabilities $ 2492 $ 7228 $ 917 $ 16,78

(1) The marketable securities are held through ouceffideferred compensation plans.
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As part of our business strategy, we from timeiteetselectively dispose of nawre properties in order to use the net proceet
investments, for repayment of debt and/or retiremoéPreferred Stock, or other purposes. The thblew sets forth the net operating resul
those assets classified as discontinued operaitioasr Consolidated Financial Statements. Thesetaisdassified as discontinued operat
comprise 1.3 million square feet of office and istlial properties and 13 rental residential unitisl gluring 2007 and the three months el
March 31, 2008 and 0.1 million square feet of @figroperties held for sale at March 31, 2008. THemg{ived assets relate to dispc
activities that were initiated subsequent to tHeative date of SFAS No. 144, or that met certaijputations prescribed by SFAS No. 144."
operations of these assets have been reclassifieddur ongoing operations to discontinued openati@nd we will not have any signific
continuing involvement in the operations after disposal transactions:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007

Rental and other revenues $ 50¢ $ 2,87¢
Operating expenses:

Rental property and other expen 282 1,32:

Depreciation and amortization 68 781

Total operating expenses 35C 2,104

Other income 1 11

Income before minority interest and gains on salesf discontinued operations 157 782

Minority interest in discontinued operations (11 (58)

Income from discontinued operations, net of minoriy interest 14€ 72E

Gains on sales of discontinued operations 3,72¢ 19,74:

Minority interest in discontinued operations (24%) (1,48

Gains on sales of discontinued operations, net ofinority interest 3,487 18,26:

Total discontinued operations $ 3,62¢ $ 18,98"

The net book value of properties classified as atisoued operations that were sold during 2007 el three months enc
March 31, 2008 and held for sale at March 31, 2af@regated $84.5 million.
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - Continued

The following table includes the major classesssfets and liabilities of the properties classifischeld for sale as of March 31, 2008
December 31, 2007:

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Land $ 164z $ 1,64
Land held for developme! 10,40« 10,40¢
Buildings and tenant improvemer 8,00z 7,98¢
Accumulated depreciation (2,137 (2,080
Net real estate ass¢ 17,917 17,95
Deferred leasing costs, r 17¢ 181
Accrued straight line rents receival 10¢ 114
Prepaid expenses and other 95 63
Total assets $ 18,29¢ $ 18,30¢
Tenant security deposits, deferred rents and adarosty1) $ 405 $ 30¢

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensesthed liabilities.
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007
Basic income per share
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 12,01« $ 33,57
Preferred Stock dividends (2,83¢) (4,119
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 9,17¢ 29,45¢
Income from discontinued operations 3,62¢ 18,98
Net income available for common stockholders $ 12,808 $  48,44F
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share — weigatedage shares 56,72¢ 56,04(
Basic earnings per shal
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.1¢€ $ 0.52
Income from discontinued operations 0.07 0.34
Net income $ 02: $ 0.8€
Diluted income per share:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 12,01« $ 33,57
Preferred Stock dividenc (2,83¢) (4,113
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership 63¢ 2,40(
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 9,81¢ 31,85¢
Income from discontinued operatic 3,62¢ 18,98
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership iscdntinued operations 254 1,53¢
Income from discontinued operations 3,88 20,52¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 13,69¢ $ 52,38¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per sk— adjusted weighted average she() 56,72¢ 56,04(
Add:
Employee and director stock options and warr 232 1,06(
Common Units 3,967 4,54;
Unvested restricted stock 122 25¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — adjlisteighted average shares and
assumed conversiol 61,05(2) 61,90(
Diluted earnings per shat
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.1¢€ $ 0.5z
Income from discontinued operations 0.0€ 0.3
Net income $ 02: $ 0.8¢

(1) Weighted average shares exclude shares of unvestigitted stock pursuant SFAS No. 128“Earnings per Shar”

(2) Options and warrants aggregating approximatelyn@ilfon shares were outstanding during the threetim® ended March 31, 2008,
were not included in the computation of dilutednéags per share because the exercise prices afptfitens and warrants were higher t
the average market price of Common Stock duringethmeeriods
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Concentration of Credit Risk

We maintain cash and cash equivalent investmerdsrestricted cash at financial institutions. Thenbined account balances at €
institution typically exceed FDIC insurance covexaand, as a result, there is a concentration afitcrisk related to amounts on deposi
excess of FDIC insurance coverage.

Land Leases

Certain properties in our wholly owned portfoliceasubject to land leases expiring through 2082 t&grayments on these leases
adjusted annually based on either the consumee pritex (CPI) or on a pre-determined schedule. llaases subject to increases under a pre
determined schedule are accounted for under thgktiine method. Total expense recorded for land leases$0.4 million and $0.3 millic
for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2@8pgectively.

As of March 31, 2008, our payment obligations fatufe minimum payments on operating leases (whictiude scheduled fix
increases, but exclude increases based on CPl)asdatlows:

Remainder of 200 $ 80¢
2009 1,11¢
2010 1,13¢
2011 1,15¢
2012 1,17¢
Thereafter 44,36¢

$ 49,76(

Environmental Matters

Substantially all of our irservice properties have been subjected to Phasé@rbemental assessments (and, in certain instaftezse
environmental assessments). Such assessments apdéaies have not revealed, nor is management afaa@y environmental liability th
management believes would have a material advéfieset en the accompanying Consolidated Financiatedhents.
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

Guarantees and Other Obligations

The table below sets forth information about cerguarantees and other obligations as of Marcl2@28. The amounts reflected in
table assume we would be required to pay the maxipotential exposure with no offsets or reductioffith respect to a rent guarantee, if
space is leased, we assumed the existing tenaaltkef at March 31, 2008 and that the space willaia unleased through the remainder o
guaranty. If the space is vacant, we assumed theespill remain vacant through the remainder ofgharanty. Since it is assumed that no
tenant will occupy the space, lease commissiorappficable, are excluded.

Amount Date
Type of Recorded/ Guarantee
Entity or Transaction Guarantee or Other Obligation Deferred Expires
Des Moines Joint Venture),(4) Debt $ — 11/2015
RRHWoods, LLC(2),(5) Indirect Debt $ 324 8/2010
Plaza Colonnad(2),(6) Indirect Debt $ 8 12/2009
Industrial3),(7) Environmental costs $ 12& Until
Remediate
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L(2),8) Rent $ 11z 6/2008
RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County Partn(2),(9) Indirect Debt $ 68 6/2014
RRHWoods, LLC(1),(2),(11) Indirect Debt $ 30 11/2009
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC(3),(10) Rent $ 29¢ 4/2011
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC(3),(10) Leasing Cost $ 29¢€ Until Paid
Capitalized Lease Obligatiol(12) Debt $ 29z Various
Brickstone(2),(13) Debt $ — 5/2017

(1) Recourse provisions exist that would enable ugtover some or all of any such payments from th jenture’ assets

(2) Represents guarantees that fall under the indebgnition and measurement requirements of FAS&pnetation No. 45, “Guarantar’
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guaesjtincluding Indirect Guarantees of IndebtednéStioere” (“FIN 45").

(3) Represents guarantees that are excluded from ithealae accounting and disclosure provisions dfl B because the existence of ¢
guarantees prevents sale treatment and/or thenigioogof profit from a sale transactic

(4) We and our joint venture each guaranteed $8.6amiltif debt of the Des Moines joint ventures thas watstanding at March 31, 2008. "
joint ventures currently generate sufficient cakiwfto cover the required debt service. This gut@rwas entered into prior to
January 1, 2003 effective date of FIN 45 for initecognition and measureme

(5) To facilitate a financing by the RRHWoods, LLC jpbirenture, we and our joint venture partner eadirapteed $3.1 million relating tc
letter of credit and a corresponding master lehssugh August 2010. The guarantee requires usytaipder a contingent master leas
the cash flows from the building securing the fettecredit do not cover at least 50% of the minimdebt service. During 2007, we m
master lease payments of $0.1 million. As of Ma3&h2008, we have recorded a $0.3 million defedatearge included in other assets
liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheet wéhpect to this guarantee. Our maximum potentipbsdre under this guarantee was
million at March 31, 200¢

(6) To facilitate a financing by the Plaza ColonnadkeCljoint venture, we and our joint venture parts@ned a contingent master le
relating to 30,772 square feet through Decembe®2@ur maximum potential exposure under this maktase was $0.9 million
March 31, 2008. The current occupancy level ofihigding has been sufficient to cover all debt sgrwequirements and, accordingly,
payments have been required under the master
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

(7) As part of the sale of an industrial property incBeber 2003, we indemnified the buyer with respe@nvironmental concerns of uf
$0.1 million. As a result, $0.1 million of the gairas deferred at the time of sale and will remaifeded until the environmental conce
are remediatec

(8) To facilitate the restructuring of a tenanteases with us and the Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLIBBILP joint venture in September 2C
we agreed to compensate the joint venture for aoepa@mic losses incurred as a result of these leesifications through June 2008.
connection with this arrangement, we have approtéinab0.1 million in other liabilities and $0.1 nidin as a deferred charge in ot
assets recorded on our Consolidated Balance Shégrah 31, 2008. Our maximum potential exposurdeurthis arrangement was $
million at March 31, 2008. During 2008, $0.1 millisvas charged to expense in connection with thieangement

(9) To facilitate a financing by the RRHWoods, LLC abdllas County Partners joint ventures, we and oint jventure partner agreed
master lease certain vacant space and each guwafh&million of debt through 2014. No master éepayments were necessary in 2
We currently have recorded $0.1 million in otheabliities and $0.1 million as a deferred chargeluded in other assets on !
Consolidated Balance Sheet with respect to theandsase payment guarantee. The maximum potentedseire under the master le
was $1.9 million at March 31, 2008. Because thetjeentures currently generate sufficient cash flowover the required debt service
liability for the $0.8 million direct guarantee weecorded at March 31, 20C

(10)We have guaranteed rent to the HIW KC Orlando, Ljbitit venture for 3,248 rentable square feet thioégril 2011. The maximu
potential exposure under this guarantee was $0l®mat March 31, 2008. Additionally, we agreeddoarantee the initial leasing co
originally estimated at $4.1 million, for approxitely 11% of the total square feet of the propemed by the joint venture. No payme
have been made thus far in 2008 under this arraege

(11)To facilitate a financing by the RRHWoods, LLC jbirenture, we and our joint venture partner eackejto guarantee $3.3 million of
joint ventures debt through November 2009, but can be reneWwszligh November 2011 at the joint ventsreption. Because the jo
venture currently generates sufficient cash flowctiver the required debt service, no liability filmis guarantee was recordec
March 31, 2008. In addition, we agreed to a mdstese for 50% of the debt service should the jeértture not generate sufficient ¢
flow to cover the required debt service. As a restithis master lease, we have recorded $0.03omilh other liabilities and as a defer
charge in other assets on our Consolidated Bal&heet at March 31, 200

(12)Represents capitalized lease obligations of $0lfBomirelated to office equipment, which is inclubliem accounts payable, accrued expe
and other liabilities on our Consolidated Balanbe& at March 31, 200

(13)To facilitate a financing by RRHWoods, LLC, ourrjbiventure partner provided a $1.5 million lettécredit. We agreed to reimbursei
partner for 50% of the letter of credit in the eveha default by the joint venture of the undemntyidebt. Because the joint venture curre
generates sufficient cash flow to cover the reglidebt service, no liability for this obligation sveecorded at March 31, 20(

Litigation, Claims and Assessments

We are from time to time a party to a variety afdeproceedings, claims and assessments arisitigeinrdinary course of our busine
We regularly assess the liabilities and contingesmian connection with these matters based on thstlaformation available. For those mai
where it is probable that we have incurred or witlur a loss and the loss or range of loss carebsonably estimated, the estimated lo
accrued and charged to income in the ConsolidateanEial Statements. In other instances, becaugbeotincertainties related to both
probable outcome and amount or range of loss,sonable estimate of liability, if any, cannot bedmaBased on the current expected outc
of such matters, none of these proceedings, claimasssessments is expected to have a materialssdeffect on our business, finan
condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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13. INCOME TAXES

Our financial statements include the operationswof taxable REIT subsidiary that is not entitledatalividends paid deduction ant
subject to corporate federal, state and local ircoaxes. As a REIT, we may also be subject to icefealeral excise taxes if we engag
certain types of transactions.

Other than the liability for an uncertain tax pmsitand related accrued interest under FIN 48 dised below, no provision has been n
pursuant to SFAS No. 109 for federal and statermedaxes during the three months ended March 318 20d 2007 because the Comg
qualified as a REIT, distributed the necessary arhofitaxable income and, therefore, incurred ramime tax expense during the periods.
taxable REIT subsidiary has operated at a cuma@latixable loss through March 31, 2008 of approxaéga$8.0 million and has paid
income taxes since its formation. In addition te $#8.1 million deferred tax asset for these cunudatax loss carryforwards, the taxable R
subsidiary also had net deferred tax assets ofoajpately $1.2 million comprised primarily of taxersus book basis differences in cel
investments and depreciable assets held by theleaREIT subsidiary. Because the future tax beraéfthe cumulative losses is not asst
the approximate $4.3 million net deferred tax apseition of the taxable REIT subsidiary has bedly freserved as management does
believe that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will be realized. Accordingly, tax benefit has been recognized ir
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.t&héenefit of the cumulative losses could be geixed for financial reporting purpot
in future periods to the extent the taxable REIbssdiary generates sufficient taxable income.

We adopted FIN 48, on January 1, 2007 and recoad8&d.4 million liability, which included $0.2 mitih of accrued interest, for
uncertain tax position, with the related expendlected as a reduction to the beginning balanceisifibutions in excess of net earnings. -
liability was included in accounts payable, accregdenses and other liabilities. During the thitduger of 2007, the liability for the uncert
tax position was released, and income recognizeah the expiration of the applicable statute ofithtions. In addition, the liability of $0.!
million of interest that was accrued in 2007 relgtio this liability was also released. We continaeexamine our tax positions and do
believe we have any uncertain tax positions thatld/cesult in a FIN 48 reserve as of March 31, 2008
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14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Our principal business is the acquisition, develeptrand operation of rental real estate properids.evaluate our business by prou
type and by geographic locations. These segmedts@ndisclosures below are expanded from whateperted in our Annual Report on Fc
10K for 2007 due to expanded internal reporting infation used by our chief operating decision makatiag in the first quarter of 20(
Each product type has different customers and en@ncharacteristics as to rental rates and termst per square foot of buildings,
purposes for which customers use the space, theeed maintenance and customer support requirddcastomer dependency on diffel
economic drivers, among others. The operating tedyl geographic grouping are also regularly reei@\wy our chief operating decision me
for assessing performance and other purposes. Bherg material inter-segment transactions.

The accounting policies of the segments are theesasrthose described in Note 1 included hereirthEgyrall operations are within 1
United States and, at March 31, 2008, no tenatiteo¥Vholly Owned Properties comprised more thafo/02 our consolidated revenues.

The following table summarizes the rental inconet,operating income and assets for each repors&igiment for the three months er
March 31, 2008 and 2007:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007
Rental and Other Revenuesq) (2)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 11,52¢ $ 10,381
Greenville, SC 3,21¢ 3,097
Kansas City, MC 4,19 3,77
Memphis, TN 6,16¢ 5,78¢
Nashville, TN 15,57¢ 12,62¢
Orlando, FL 1,93t 1,59
Piedmont Triad, N( 6,381 6,69t
Raleigh, NC 18,52 15,797
Richmond, VA 11,467 10,67
Tampa, FL 15,83« 15,35¢
Other 507 93¢
Total Office Segment 95,32( 86,72¢
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 4,12z 3,80¢
Kansas City, MC 5 5
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,95¢ 3,731
Total Industrial Segment 8,087 7,563¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MC 10,87: 11,42¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 19t 12F
Total Retail Segment 11,06; 11,55;
Residential
Kansas City, MO 30€ 292
Total Residential Segment 30€ 297
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 114,78 $ 106,10¢
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14 SEGMENT INFORMATION - Continued

Net Operating Income: (1) (2)
Office:
Atlanta, GA
Greenville, SC
Kansas City, MC
Memphis, TN
Nashville, TN
Orlando, FL
Piedmont Triad, N(
Raleigh, NC
Richmond, VA
Tampa, FL
Other
Total Office Segment

Industrial:
Atlanta, GA

Kansas City, MC
Piedmont Triad, NC

Total Industrial Segment
Retail:
Kansas City, MC
Piedmont Triad, N(

Raleigh, NC
Total Retail Segment
Residential

Kansas City, MO
Total Residential Segment
Total Net Operating Income
Reconciliation to income before disposition of proerty, insurance gain, minority
interest and equity in earnings of unconsolidatedféiliates:
Depreciation and amortizatic
General and administrative expel
Interest expense
Interest and other income

Income before disposition of property, insurance gainority interest and equity
in earnings of unconsolidated affiliat

(1) Net of discontinued operatior
(2) The Piedmont Triad market encompasses the GreemahdrWinsto-Salem metropolitan are

30

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007
$ 7,561 $ 6,70¢
1,94¢ 1,79
2,15¢ 1,86¢
3,65¢ 3,51C
10,62¢ 8,16¢
1,113 97¢€
4,024 4,11°¢
12,90: 10,46¢
8,017 7,40:%
9,67¢ 9,401
331 72
62,00¢ 54,48¢
3,12¢ 2,97:
2 2
3,152 2,94
6,28 5,92
7,04t 7,54z
151 96
23 (16)
7,17 7,62
19C 144
19C 144
75,65: 68,17
(31,047 (28,96%)
(9,719 (10,917
(24,847 (24,24Y)
802 1,51
$ 10,86: $ 5,56:
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and arialys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidiaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymzontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticodar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspeder this section and under the heading "Busihé&®u can identify forwardeoking
statements by our use of forward-looking terminglegich as "may,” "will,” "expect,” "anticipate,” $mate,” ‘tontinue" or other simili
words. Although we believe that our plans, intemsicand expectations reflected in or suggested b $orwardlooking statements &
reasonable, we cannot assure you that our platesitions or expectations will be achieved. Whersaering such forwartboking statement
you should keep in mind the following importanttfars that could cause our actual results to diffaterially from those contained in ¢
forward-looking statement:

e Speculative development activity by our competitorsour existing markets could result in an excesssupply of office
industrial and retail properties relative to tendamand

o the financial condition of our tenants could detmte;

e We may not be able to complete development, adprisireinvestment, disposition or joint ventur@jpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipate

e We may not be able to lease or release space yuckin as favorable terms as old lea
e increases in interest rates would increase our sigltce costs;

e We may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaear obtain capital on favorable terms to fund working capital needs a
growth initiatives or to repay or refinance outslizng debt upon maturity

e We could lose key executive officers; and
e our southeastern and midwestern markets may sudfdines in economic growth.

This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also wevle other cautionary statements
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth in 2007 Annual Report.

Given these uncertainties, you should not placeuengliance on forwartboking statements. We undertake no obligation ubliply
release the results of any revisions to these fahiaking statements to reflect any future eventsimumstances or to reflect the occurre
of unanticipated events.

OVERVIEW

We are a fully integrated, self-administered arlét smnaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managgndevelopment, constructi
and other customer-related services for our pragsedand for third parties. As of March 31, 2008, avened or had an interest in 3815@rvice
office, industrial and retail properties, encomjpagapproximately 34.2 million square feet, whidkludes six inservice office, industrial al
retail development properties that had not yethedc95% stabilized occupancy aggregating approeiyndt.2 million square feet, and £
rental residential units. We are based in Raldigirth Carolina, and our properties and developrnteerd are located in Florida, Georgia, lo
Kansas, Maryland, Missouri, North Carolina, Soutlrdlina, Tennessee and Virginia. Additional infotima about us can be found on
website at www.highwoods.com. Information on oubsgite is not part of this Quarterly Report.
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Results of Operations

Approximately 83% of our rental and other revemaenf continuing operations is derived from our adfigroperties. As a result, while
own and operate a limited number of industriakitetnd residential properties, our operating tsstépend heavily on successfully leasing
office properties. Furthermore, since approxima@&d@o of our annualized revenues from office prapsrtome from properties locatec
Florida, Georgia, North Carolina and Tennesseep@unic growth in those states is and will continodé an important determinative facto
predicting our future operating results.

The key components affecting our rental revenueastr are dispositions, acquisitions, new developseldced in service, aver:
occupancy and rental rates. Average occupancy aénémcreases during times of improving economiovgth, as our ability to lease sp.
outpaces vacancies that occur upon the expiratbexisting leases. Average occupancy generalljirte during times of slower econor
growth, when new vacancies tend to outpace ouityabil lease space. Asset acquisitions, dispostamd new developments placed in sel
directly impact our rental revenues and could impag average occupancy, depending upon the occypate of the properties that
acquired, sold or placed in service. A further aador of the predictability of future revenueshs expected lease expirations of our portf
As a result, in addition to seeking to increase awgrage occupancy by leasing current vacant speeelso must concentrate our lea
efforts on renewing leases on expiring space. Wirath not our rental revenue tracks average ocaypproportionally depends upon whel
rents under new leases signed are higher or |dveerthe rents under the previous leases.

Our expenses primarily consist of rental properyemses, depreciation and amortization, generahdninistrative expenses and inte
expense. Rental property expenses are expensesaasdavith our ownership and operation of rentalperties and include expenses that
somewhat, such as common area maintenance artgesitiind relatively fixed expenses, such as ptggares and insurance. Some of tl
variable expenses may be lower when our averaggpaocy declines. Depreciation and amortizationnsm@cash expense associated with
ownership of real property and generally remaimetirely consistent each year, unless we buy dresslets, since we depreciate our prope
on a straightine basis over fixed lives. General and administeaexpenses, net of amounts capitalized, copsistarily of management a
employee salaries and other personnel costs, aigand division overhead and lotggm incentive compensation. Interest expense di=
primarily upon the amount of our borrowings, theigited average interest rates on our debt and theuat of interest capitalized
development projects.

We record in “equity in earnings of unconsolidatftiliates” our proportionate share of net income or loss, sadfli for purchas
accounting effects, of our unconsolidated jointtuess.

Additionally, SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the lmpment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assetggquires us to record net inco
received from properties sold or held for sale thaalify as discontinued operations under SFAS N4 separately asifcome fron
discontinued operationsAs a result, we separately record revenues andnseserom these qualifying properties. As also ireguby SFA!
No. 144, prior period results are reclassifiedettect the operations for such properties in ditiooied operations

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We incur capital expenditures to lease space t@ostomers and to maintain the quality of our proee to successfully compete aga
other properties. Tenant improvements are the cegtsired to customize the space for the spec#ds of the customer. Lease commis:
are costs incurred to find the customer for thecsphease incentives are costs paid to or on beh#édinants to induce them to enter into le
and that do not relate to customizing the spacéh®tenans specific needs. Building improvements are rengrdapital costs not related t
customer to maintain the buildings. As leases expire either attempt to relet the space to aniegistustomer or attract a new custome
occupy the space. Generally, customer renewaldreetpwer leasing capital expenditures than reigttio new customers. However, ma
conditions such as supply of available space inntlagket, as well as demand for space, drive not onstomer rental rates but also te
improvement costs. Leasing capital expendituresaarertized over the term of the lease and buildingrovements are depreciated over
appropriate useful life of the assets acquiredhBwoé included in depreciation and amortizatioresults of operations.
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Because we are a REIT, we are required under tfexdetax laws to distribute at least 90% of oul Rtaxable income, excluding cap
gains, to our stockholders. We generally use rezusived from customers and proceeds from sale®mwtore development land to fund
operating expenses, recurring capital expenditares stockholder dividends. To fund property acdoiss, development activity or buildi
renovations, we may sell other assets and may idebt from time to time. Our debt generally corssist mortgage debt, unsecured ¢
securities and borrowings under our credit faeitiAs of March 31, 2008, we had approximately $&fillion of additional borrowin
availability under our unsecured revolving creditifity, and we had approximately $111 million afditional borrowing availability under ¢
secured revolving construction loan facilities.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture goring our outstanding lontgrm unsecured debt securities require us to gateaious
operating and financial covenants and performaaties. As a result, to ensure that we do not véothe provisions of these debt instrume
we may from time to time be limited in undertakiogrtain activities that may otherwise be in thet leterest of our stockholders, suct
repurchasing capital stock, acquiring additionaless, increasing the total amount of our debt oreiasing stockholder dividends. We rev
our current and expected operating results, firdra@ndition and planned strategic actions on agping basis for the purpose of monitol
our continued compliance with these covenants atids. Any unwaived event of default could resalan acceleration of some or all of
debt, severely restrict our ability to incur adulital debt to fund short- and long-term cash needssult in higher interest expense.

To generate additional capital to fund our growtkl ather strategic initiatives and to lessen theenship risks typically associated v
owning 100.0% of a property, we may sell some of moperties or contribute them to joint venturdthen we create a joint venture wit
strategic partner, we usually contribute one orepmoperties that we own and/or vacant land tovalynéormed entity in which we retain
interest of 50.0% or less. In exchange for our equaninority interest in the joint venture, we geally receive cash from the partner and re
some or all of the management income relating égpttoperties in the joint venture. The joint ventitself will frequently borrow money on
own behalf to finance the acquisition of, and/mel@ge the return upon, the properties being aeduiy the joint venture or to build or acq;
additional buildings. Such borrowings are typicailly a nonrecourse or limited recourse basis. We generaéiynat liable for the debts of ¢
joint ventures, except to the extent of our eqingestment, unless we have directly guaranteedoérlyat debt. In most cases, we and/or
strategic partners are required to guarantee castoexceptions to non-recourse liability in n@tourse loans. See Note 12 to the Consoli
Financial Statements for additional informationaantain debt guarantees. We have historically sdéo additional Common Stock or Prefel
Stock or issued Common Units to fund additionalvgloor to reduce our debt, but we have limited ¢hefforts since 1998 because fu
generated from our capital recycling program irergg/ears have provided sufficient funds to satefy liquidity needs. In addition, we he
recently used funds from our capital recycling pesg to redeem or repurchase Common Units and Peef&tock for cash. In the future,
may from time to time retire some or all of our gning outstanding Preferred Stock through redemngtiopen market repurchases, privi
negotiated acquisitions or otherwise.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 and as describedoite 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statememésreclassified the operatic
and/or gain/(loss) from disposal of certain projgsrto discontinued operations for all periods enésd if the operations and cash flows |
been or will be eliminated from our ongoing opeyas and we will not have any significant continuingolvement in the operations after
disposal transaction and the properties were egtblel during 2007 and the first three months of@00were held for sale at March 31, 2(
There were no properties sold during 2007 anditeethree months of 2008 that did not meet thed@tns as stipulated by SFAS No. 144.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

The following table sets forth information regamliour unaudited results of operations for the thmemths ended March 31, 2008
2007 ($ in millions):

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2008 to 2007
2008 2007 $ Change % of Change
Rental and other revenues $ 114.¢ $ 106.1 $ 8.7 8.2%
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen 39.1 37.¢ 1.2 3.2
Depreciation and amortizatic 31.1 29.C 2.1 7.2
General and administrative 9.7 10.€ (1.2 (11.0)
Total operating expenses 79.¢ 77.¢ 2.1 2.7
Interest expenses:
Contractua 23.t 22.1 0.8 3.5
Amortization of deferred financing cos 0.€ 0.t 0.1 20.C
Financing obligations 0.7 1.C (0.3 (30.0
24.¢ 24.2 0.6 2.5
Other income:
Interest and other income 0.8 1.E (0.7) (46.7)
0.8 1kt (0.7 (46.7)
Income before disposition of property, minority interest and equity
in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 10.¢ 5.€ 5.3 94.¢
Gains on disposition of property, r — 16.7 (16.7) (200.0)
Gain from property insurance settlem — 4.1 (4.2 (200.0
Minority interest (0.9 (2.6) 1.8 69.2
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 1.6 9.7 (7.8) (80.4)
Income from continuing operations 12.C 33.t (21.9 (64.2)
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryorit
interest 0.1 0.7 (0.6) (85.7)
Net gains on sales of discontinued operationsohetinority
interest 3.t 18.c (14.8) (80.9)
3.€ 19.C (15.9 (81.7)
Net income 15.€ 52.t (36.9 (70.9)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (2.9) (4.1) 1.3 31.7
Net income available for common stockholders $ 12.£ $ 484 % (35.6 (73.6)04

Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues increased $8.7 milligherfirst quarter of 2008 compared to 2007 pritgdrom higher average occupancy
certain locations in 2008 as compared to 2007¢ctmeribution from developed
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properties placed in service in 2007 and the finste months of 2008 and higher escalation incam2008 as a result of the increas
operating expenses for the same period. In additothe three months ended March 31, 2008, werdecb$1.9 million in lease terminati
income, primarily relating to expiration of a leaseour Raleigh division.

Rental Property and Other Expenses

Rental and other operating expenses from continapeyations (real estate taxes, utilities, insueamepairs and maintenance and ¢
propertyrelated expenses) increased $1.2 million in thet fjuarter of 2008 compared to the first quarteR@d7, primarily as a result
general inflationary increases in certain operaéirgenses, such as utility costs, insurance costseal estate taxes. In addition, rental proj
and operating expenses of developed propertieggliacservice in 2007 and the three months endedtMail, 2008 contributed to the incre
in the first quarter of 2008.

Rental revenues less rental and other operatingresgs increased in 2008 compared to 2007. Thisingaply the result of hight
revenues and higher average occupancy. In additienare benefiting from the lower operating costsoaiated with a younger and hig
quality portfolio.

The $2.1 million increase in depreciation and airation is primarily a result of the contributiorom development properties place:
service in 2007 and the three months ended MarcB@®I8, and an increase in building improvemergeamt improvements and defel
leasing costs related to those buildings placestimice.

The $1.2 million decrease in general and admiristaexpenses was primarily related to lower afiells and lower costs written
related to the termination of certain ptevelopment projects and a decrease in the adjostlated or our deferred compensation liabilgge
Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements¢s€& decreases were party offset by higher amuotizaf restricted stock and stock opti
and the annual incentive increases and generatimiary effects.

Interest Expense

The increase in contractual interest expense mapily the result of an increase in average bomgwifrom $1.45 billion in the thr
months ended March 31, 2007 to $1.66 billion in theee months ended March 31, 2008. Partly offsgtthis increase was a decreas
weighted average interest rates on outstandingfdeit 6.83% for the first quarter of 2007 compated.26% for the first quarter of 2008.
addition, capitalized interest in 2008 was appratety $0.4 million higher compared to 2007.

Gains on Disposition of Property; Gain from Property Insurance Settlement; Minority Interest; Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated
Affiliates

Net gains on dispositions of properties not clésdifas discontinued operations was $16.7 million ttee three months enc
March 31, 2007. Gains are dependent on the spexsiets sold, their historical cost basis and déndors, and can vary significantly fri
period to period. See Note 4 to the Consolidatearkédial Statements for further discussion.

In the first quarter of 2007, we recorded a $4.llioni gain from finalization of a prior year insuree claim.

The increase in minority interest expense of $lilian was primarily due to a corresponding increas the Operating Partnership’
income from continuing operations, after Preferdedt distributions.

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates mased $7.8 million from to 2007. The decrease ailgnresulted from the followir
transactions. In 2007, the Weston Lakeside joimtwe sold 332 rental residential units, recogmjzingain of approximately $11.3 millic
which resulted in approximately $5.0 million in égun earnings of unconsolidated affiliates. Fiw@perties owned by our DLF | joint vent
(“DLF I") were sold and the joint venture recognized a gaepproximately $9.3 million, resulting in approxately $2.1 million in equity i
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates in 2007. Aiddially, in 2007, DLF | received a lease terminatiof which the net effect was $2.7 mill
and resulted in approximately $0.6 million in eguib earnings of unconsolidated affiliates. (SeeteN@ to the Consolidated Finan
Statements for further discussion related to theseactions).
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Discontinued Operations

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we classifiedinebme of $3.6 million and $19.0 million, net of mority interest, as discontinu
operations for the three months ended March 318 20@l 2007, respectively. These amounts relate3amlllion square feet of office a
industrial properties and 13 rental residentiatsusbld during 2007 and the three months ended iM2it¢ 2008 and 0.1 million square fee

office properties held for sale at March 31, 200Bese amounts include net gains on the sale oéthegperties of $3.5 million and $1
million, net of minority interest, in the three ntha ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Preferred Dividends

Preferred dividends decreased $1.3 million dud¢arétirement of $62 million of Preferred Stockk07.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Statement of Cash Flows
As required by GAAP, we report and analyze our dishks based on operating activities, investingwvitéés and financing activities. T
following table sets forth the changes in our cfistvs in the first three months of 2008 as compatedhe first three months of 2007

thousands):

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007 Change
Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 20,81: $ 25,74¢  $ (4,930
Cash Used In Investing Activitie (44,920 (4,930 (39,990
Cash Provided by/(Used In) Financing Activities 27,56 (36,577 64,13¢
Total Cash Flows $ 345 $ (15,765 $ 19,21¢

In calculating cash flow from operating activitiefgpreciation and amortization, which are mash expenses, are added back ti
income. As a result, we have historically generatesignificant positive amount of cash from opemgtactivities. From period to period, ¢
flow from operations depends primarily upon chanigesur net income, as discussed more fully abowden “Results of Operations¢hange
in receivables and payables, and net additionseoredses in our overall portfolio, which affect #maount of depreciation and amortiza
expense.

Cash provided by or used in investing activitiesegally relates to capitalized costs incurred é&asing and major building improveme
and our acquisition, development, disposition awittjventure activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actisitigill generally exceed cash provided by investiagjvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distmgtiof capital from our joint ventures.

Cash used in financing activities generally relatestockholder dividends, distributions on Comntdmits, incurrence and repaymen
debt and sales, repurchases or redemptions of Canstoek, Common Units and Preferred Stock. As dised previously, we use a signific
amount of our cash to fund stockholder dividends @ammon Unit distributions. Whether or not we han@eases in the outstanding balal
of debt during a period depends generally upom#teeffect of our acquisition, disposition, devetamt and joint venture activity. We use
revolving credit facility for working capital purges, which means that during any given periodydeioto minimize interest expense, we
likely record significant repayments and borrowingsler our revolving credit facility.

The decrease of $4.9 million in cash provided bgraping activities in 2008 compared to 2007 wamarily the result of the net char
in operating assets and liabilities, which resulted $12.2 million decrease in cash provided bgrapng activities. Offsetting these decre.
were higher cash flows from net income as adju$tedchanges in depreciation and amortization expemasnortization of stock bas
compensation, gains on disposition of propertiegam from a property insurance settlement, migoirterest, and equity in earnings
unconsolidated affiliates.

The increase of $40.0 million in cash used in itingsactivities in 2008 compared to 2007 was prifpaa result of a $59.0 millic
decrease in proceeds from the disposition of aspat#ly offset by an increase of $18.0 millionateld to proceeds from dispositions wi
were set aside and designated for potential fuax-aleferred real estate transactions.

The increase of $64.1 million in cash provided imafcing activities in 2008 compared to 2007 wamarily a result of a $38.9 millic
increase in net borrowings on the revolving crdddility and mortgages and notes payable, a deereasb24.1 million in cash used
connection with the repurchase of Common Units,addcrease of $1.3 million in cash used for therat of dividends on Preferred Stock.

In 2008, we continued our capital recycling prograhselectively disposing of notere properties in order to use the net proceex
investments or other purposes. At March 31, 20@8had 40 acres of land and 0.1 million
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square feet of office properties classified as lhetdale pursuant to SFAS No. 144 with a carryiatye of $18.3 million.
Capitalization

The following table sets forth our capitalizatichat March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 (in thiods, except per share amounts):

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 1,703,23! $ 1,641,98
Financing obligation $ 35,29t $ 35,07:
Preferred Stock, at liquidation val $ 135,43° $ 135,43
Common Stock and Common Units outstanc 61,26( 61,22«
Per share stock price at peri $ 31.07 $ 29.3¢
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units 1,903,341 1,798,76.
Total market capitalization with debt and obligato $ 3,777,31  $ 3,611,25

Based on our total market capitalization of appmately $3.8 billion at March 31, 2008 (at the Ma8dh 2008 per share stock price
$31.07 and assuming the redemption for shares oin@m Stock of the 4.0 million Common Units not owr®y the Company), our mortga
and notes payable represented approximately 45f1%rdotal market capitalization.

Mortgages and notes payable at March 31, 2008 wapiised of $670 million of secured indebtednedh wiweighted average intet
rate of 6.5 % and $1,033 million of unsecured iniddbess with a weighted average interest rate 47%. As of March 31, 2008, c
outstanding mortgages and notes payable were stbyreeal estate assets with an aggregate undefgediook value of approximately $
billion.

~_ Our Consolidated Balance Sheet includes $84.2aniltf debt outstanding at consolidated joint vesguthat we have not directly
indirectly guaranteed. We are generally not lidbtethis debt except to the extent of our equityeistment in the joint ventures.

We do not intend to reserve funds to retire exgsiecured or unsecured debt upon maturity. For r@ mmmplete discussion of our long-
term liquidity needs, see “Liquidity and Capitald®erces - Current and Future Cash Needs.”

Contractual Obligations

See our 2007 Annual Report on FormK ®@er a table setting forth a summary of our coatual obligations at December 31, 2007. T
were no material changes to this information inttiree months ended March 31, 2008.

Financing and Investments Activity

Our $450 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis initially scheduled to mature on May 1, 2088suming no default exists, we h
an option to extend the maturity date by one aolditi year. The interest rate is LIBOR plus 80 bpsists and the annual base facility fee i
basis points. As of March 31, 2008, we had $24Toniborrowed on this revolving credit facility.

On June 5, 2007, two thrgear secured construction loans totaling $24.7ionilwith interest at 175 basis points over LIBORrg
obtained by REES, a consolidated joint venture ($et 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statemeisshsequently, on July 17, 2007, RE
obtained an additional $13.7 million, thrgear secured construction loan with interest at i&&is points over LIBOR. In October 2007,
paid off one of the original secured constructioans, which had accounted for $4.4 million of thigioal $24.7 million. At March 31, 20C
$24.4 million was outstanding under the two renrajribans.
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On December 20, 2007, we closed a $70 million sstuevolving construction facility. The loan matsiren December 20, 2010. 7
interest rate is based on LIBOR plus 85 basis po#t March 31, 2008, there were no amounts oudétgnon this revolving facility.

In December 2007, Plaza Residential, LLC, a codatdid joint venture (see Note 1 to the Consolid&iedncial Statements), obtaine
two-year, $34.1 million secured construction loan witterest at 140 basis points over LIBOR. At Mardh 2008, there was $2.5 milli
outstanding on this loan.

On February 1, 2008, we paid off at maturity $106llion of 7.125% unsecured notes using borrowingsler our revolving crec
facility. On February 26, 2008, we closed a $137ibion threeyear term loan that bears interest at LIBOR plu8 fhsis points. Procee
from this loan were used to reduce the outstanbdargowings under our revolving credit facility afad short-term investments.

Our revolving credit facility, the term loan andetindenture that governs our outstanding notesineaqs to comply with custome
operating covenants and various financial and diperaatios. We are currently in compliance withsalch requirements. Although we ex
to remain in compliance with these covenants atidsdor at least the next year, depending uponfoture operating performance, prop:
and financing transactions and general economiditions, we cannot assure you that we will contitmbe in compliance.

If any of our lenders ever accelerated outstandieigt due to an event of default, we would not ble &b borrow any further amoul
under our revolving credit facility, which would &tsely affect our ability to fund our operatioffsour debt cannot be paid, refinancec
extended at maturity or upon acceleration, in daoldito our failure to repay our debt, we may notabée to make distributions to stockholc
at expected levels or at all. Furthermore, if agfjnancing is done at higher interest rates, tleecimsed interest expense would adversely
our cash flows and ability to pay dividends to ktemders. Any such refinancing could also impogétgr financial ratios and other coven:i
that would restrict our ability to take actions tthveould otherwise be in our stockholdeksst interest, such as funding new develop
activity, making opportunistic acquisitions, repuasing our securities or paying dividends.

In March 2008, we and an affiliate of DLF formedew joint venture, Highwoods DLF Forum, LLC, in whiwe have a 25% owners
interest. Upon formation of this joint venture, wentributed $0.8 million of cash. On April 3, 20@8ighwoods DLF Forum, LLC, acquir
The Forum, which is a 635,000 square foot offick pia Raleigh, North Carolina, for approximatelyl®Lmillion. We contributed an additiol
$11.5 million to Highwoods DLF Forum, LLC and, siltaneously with the acquisition of The Forum, thim{ venture obtained a $67.5 mill
secured loan. We are the property manager andnigasmjent for the office park and receive customamgnagement fees and leas
commissions. We will account for this unconsolidgj@nt venture using the equity method of accaumti

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soafdeinds to meet our shotrm liquidity requirements, which primarily cortsisf
operating expenses, debt service, stockholder elivd, any guarantee obligations and recurring alapitpenditures. In addition, we co
incur tenant improvement costs and lease commissilated to any releasing of vacant space.

As of March 31, 2008, other than principal amottaa oncertain secured loans, we have no outstandingttabmatures prior to the €
of 2008. We generally expect to fund our shertn liquidity needs through a combination of aablié working capital, cash flows frc
operations and the following:

e the selective disposition of n-core land and other asse

e borrowings under our revolving credit facility anelvolving construction facilities (which have $26illion and $111 million ¢
availability, respectively, as of March 31, 200

o the sale or contribution of some of our Wholly Owneroperties, development projects and developraet to strategic joil

ventures to be formed with unrelated investors.ciiwould have the net effect of generating addétiaapital through such sale
contributions;
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o theissuance of secured debt;
o theissuance of unsecured de¢

Our longterm liquidity needs generally include the fundofgcapital expenditures to lease space to our mete, maintain the quality
our existing properties and build new propertieapi@l expenditures include tenant improvementsidimg improvements, new buildil
completion costs and land infrastructure costs.aneimprovements are the costs required to cuswisjiace for the specific needs of first-
generation and secomygneration customers. Building improvements arerréty capital costs not related to a specific cosr to maintai
existing buildings. New building completion costg @&xpenses for the construction of new buildingsd infrastructure costs are expenst
prepare development land for future developmeniviactthat is not specifically related to a singbelilding. Excluding recurring capi
expenditures for leasing costs and tenant improwsnand for normal building improvements, our expéduture capital expenditures
started and/or committed new development projeetevapproximately $131 million at March 31, 2008significant portion of these futt
expenditures are currently subject to binding caitral arrangements.

Our longterm liquidity needs also include the funding ofelepment projects, selective asset acquisitiomisthe retirement of mortga
debt, amounts outstanding under our revolving triadility and longterm unsecured debt. Our goal is to maintain aewasive and flexibl
balance sheet. Accordingly, we expect to meet ongterm liquidity needs through a combination of (b tissuance by the Operal
Partnership of additional unsecured debt securitiy the issuance of additional equity securitiysthe Company and the Opera
Partnership, (3) borrowings under other securedtcoction loans that we may enter into, as wel(4sthe sources described above
respect to our short-term liquidity. We expect s& such sources to meet our Idagn liquidity requirements either through direaeyments ¢
repayments of borrowings under our revolving créattlity. As mentioned above, we do not intenadserve funds to retire existing secure
unsecured indebtedness upon maturity. Instead, iWsegk to refinance such debt at maturity orreeiuch debt through the issuance of e
or debt securities or from proceeds from salesropgrties. In the future, we may from time to timetire some or all of our remaini
outstanding Preferred Stock through redemptionsnaparket repurchases, privately negotiated adorisior otherwise.

We anticipate that our available cash and cashvatgrits and cash flows from operating activitiekhwash available from borrowin
and other sources, will be adequate to meet outatamd liquidity needs in both the short and laegn. However, if these sources of funds
insufficient or unavailable, our ability to pay diends to stockholders and satisfy other cash patsmeay be adversely affected.
Stockholder Dividends

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we mustdbute to stockholders at least 90% of our REXable income, excluding cap
gains. REIT taxable income, the calculation of vahis determined by the federal tax laws, does motaknet income under GAAP. \
generally expect to use our cash flow from opegaéotivities for dividends to stockholders and ayment of recurring capital expenditu
Future dividends will be made at the discretioroof Board of Directors. The following factors wiffect our cash flows and, accordin
influence decisions of the Board of Directors relyyag dividends:

o debt service requirements after taking into accdeht covenants and the repayment and restructafiogrtain indebtednes
e scheduled increases in base rents of existingdease

e changes in rents attributable to renewal of exgstases or replacement leases;

e changes in occupancy rates at existing properntidssaecution of leases for newly acquired or degyetioproperties;

e Operating expenses and capital replacement neexisding tenant improvements and leasing costs; and

e sales of properties and r-core land
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have several off balance sheet joint venturequratantee arrangements. The joint ventures weneefb with unrelated investors
generate additional capital to fund property adtjaiss, repay outstanding debt, fund other strategitiatives and lessen the risks typic
associated with owning 100.0% of a property. Whencveate a joint venture with a partner, we usuadiytribute cash or wholly owned as:
to a newly formed entity in which we retain an dgolaminority interest. For financial reporting pases, certain assets we sold have
accounted for as financing arrangements. See Nosnd 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of March 31, 2008, our unconsolidated joint weaes had $743.0 million of total assets and $58€lon of total liabilities as reflecte
in their financial statements. At March 31, 2008y weighted average equity interest based on tte &ssets of these unconsolidated
ventures was 39.5%. During the three months enda@iv31, 2008, these unconsolidated joint venteaesed $4.2 million of total net inco
of which our share, after appropriate purchase @ttty and other adjustments, was $2.0 million. Bdditional information about ¢
unconsolidated joint venture activity, see Note 2hie Consolidated Financial Statements.

As of March 31, 2008, our unconsolidated joint wees had $556.9 million of outstanding mortgaget.délh of this joint venture debt
non+ecourse to us except (1) in the case of customeargptions pertaining to such matters as misugenafs, environmental conditions ¢
material misrepresentations and (2) those guararged loans described in Note 12 to the Consolidateancial Statements. The follow
table sets forth the scheduled maturities of owpertionate share of the outstanding debt of ouronsmolidated joint ventures as
March 31, 2008 ($ in thousands):

Remainder of 200 $ 3,411
2009 6,79(
2010 9,51¢
2011 6,21°¢
2012 42,01:
Thereafter 165,25:

For information regarding our off-balance sheetiagements as of December 31, 2007, see “Managesr@istussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Bdfance Sheet Arrangements” in our 2007 AnnualdRepn Form 10K. There were n
material changes to this information in the thremnths ended March 31, 2008.

Financing Arrangements

For information regarding significant sales trarigens that were accounted for as financing arrareggsnat December 31, 2007,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations — Financing Rrafit-Sharing Arrangementsti oul
2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K. There were no nedtehanges to this information in the three merghded March 31, 2008.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities

To meet, in part, our longerm liquidity requirements, we borrow funds atoenbination of fixed and variable rates. Borrowinggler ou
revolving credit facility bear interest at varialoltes. Our long-term debt, which consists of sed¢@nd unsecured lorigrm financings and tl
issuance of unsecured debt securities, typicalardbterest at fixed rates although some loans ineaxest at variable rates. Our interest
risk management objectives are to limit the impgddhterest rate changes on earnings and cash #mggo lower our overall borrowing co:
To achieve these objectives, from time to time,may enter into interest rate hedge contracts saatolars, swaps, caps and treasury
agreements in order to mitigate our interest rste with respect to various debt instruments. Wendbhold or issue these derivative contr
for trading or speculative purposes. The interast pn all of our variable rate debt is adjustedre and three month intervals, subjec
settlements under interest rate hedge contractal¥éeenter into treasury lock agreements from tionime in order to limit our exposure to
increase in interest rates with respect to futedet dfferings.
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During 2007, we entered into two floating-to-fixaderest rate swaps for a ogear period with respect to an aggregate of $50amibf
borrowings outstanding under our revolving creditility. These swaps fix the underlying 8@y LIBOR rate under which interest on s
borrowings is based at 4.70%. These swaps weradegignated as hedges as of March 31, 2008 undefs S¥& 133, Accounting fo
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” ("85 No. 133”), as amended by SFAS No. 148xendment of Statement 133 on Deriva
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” Accordingljhet swaps were accounted for as hedge derivatives as of March 31, 2008, an
aggregate unrealized loss of $0.3 million was recegl in the first three months of 2008 for these swaps.

In January 2008, we entered into two additionahtflog-to-fixed interest rate swaps for a grear period with respect to an aggrega
$50 million of borrowings outstanding under ouraksng credit facility or other floating rate delfthese swaps fix the underlying LIBOR 1
under which interest on such borrowings is bas&126% for $30 million of borrowings and 3.24% &#0 million of borrowings. These swi
were designated as hedges under SFAS No. 133. dingy, the swaps are being accounted for as dashtfedges.

In April 2008, we entered into an additional floggito-fixed interest rate swap for a twear period with respect to an aggregate ol
million of borrowings outstanding under our ternatoor other floating rate debt. The swap fixes whderlying LIBOR rate under whi
interest on such borrowings is based at 2.52%. shiep was designated as a hedge under SFAS No.At88rdingly, the swap is bei
accounted for as a cash flow hedge.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

There were no changes to the critical accountirigips made by management in the three months ektéedh 31, 2008, except as
forth in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statats under “Impact of Newly Adopted and Issueddeting Standardsand in Note 1:
For a description of our critical accounting estiesa see “Management’Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord d&esults ¢
Operations - Critical Accounting Estimates” in @007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

We believe that FFO and FFO per share are benlgficreanagement and investors and are importamntatats of the performance of ¢
equity REIT. Because FFO and FFO per share calontatxclude such factors as depreciation and d@atidn of real estate assets and ¢
or losses from sales of operating real estate afsbich can vary among owners of identical assesimilar conditions based on historical
accounting and useful life estimates), they faailitcomparisons of operating performance betweeiodseand between other REITS. |
management believes that historical cost accouritingeal estate assets in accordance with GAARi@itlp assumes that the value of r
estate assets diminishes predictably over timeceSinal estate values have historically risen berfavith market conditions, many indus
investors and analysts have considered the preamentsf operating results for real estate compatti@s use historical cost accounting tc
insufficient by itself. As a result, managementidads that the use of FFO and FFO per share, tegetfith the required GAAP presentatic
provide a more complete understanding of our peréorce relative to our competitors and a more inéatrand appropriate basis on whic
make decisions involving operating, financing ameeisting activities.

FFO and FFO per share as disclosed by other REBysnmat be comparable to our calculation of FFO BRO per share as descril
below. However, you should also be aware that FROFFO per share are n@AAP financial measures and therefore do not represe
income or net income per share as defined by GA¥R.income and net income per share as defineddARGare the most relevant meast
in determining our operating performance becaus® BRd FFO per share include adjustments that ioxeshay deem subjective, suct
adding back expenses such as depreciation andiaation. Furthermore, FFO per share does not dépécamount that accrues directly to
stockholdersbenefit. Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share showder be considered as alternatives to net incanmetancome per share
indicators of our operating performance.

Our calculation of FFO, which we believe is coraistwith the calculation of FFO as defined by thetidhal Association of Real Est
Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) and which approprigteixcludes the cost of capital improvements anateel capitalized interest, is as follows:
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e Netincome (loss) computed in accordance with GA
e Less dividends to holders of Preferred Stock aas éxcess of Preferred Stock redemption cost @reying value
o Plus depreciation and amortization of assets ufycgignificant to the real estate industry;

e Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecerating properties (but excluding impairmergses) and excluding ite
that are classified as extraordinary items undeAB#

e Plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidated peshigs and joint ventures (to reflect funds fronexgtions on the same bas
and

e Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and #padion and gains/(losses) on sales and minoritgrest related
discontinued operation

Further, in calculating FFO, we add back minoritterest in the income from the Operating Partnprsiihich we believe is consisti
with standard industry practice for REITs that @perthrough an UPREIT structure. We believe th# important to present FFO on an as-
converted basis since all of the Common Units matexd by the Company are redeemable on a onererbasis for shares of our Comr
Stock.

Other REITs may not define FFO in accordance whith ¢urrent NAREIT definition or may interpret tharent NAREIT definitiol
differently than we do.

FFO and FFO per share for the three months endedh\VBd, 2008 and 2007 are summarized in the foligwable ($ in thousands, exc
per share amounts):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2008 2007
Per Per
Amount Share Amount Share
Funds from operations:
Net income $ 15,64 $ 52,55¢
Dividends to preferred stockholders (2,83¢) (4,119
Net income available for common stockhold 12,80 $ 0.2z 48,44t $ 0.8t
Add/(Deduct):
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: 30,48 0.5C 28,32¢ 0.4¢
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper — — (90¢) (0.01
Minority interest from the Operating Partnershiprinome from
continuing operation 63¢ — 2,40( —
Unconsolidated affiliates
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: 2,93¢ 0.0t 2,86¢ 0.04
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper — — (7,15¢ (0.19)
Discontinued operation
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: 68 — 781 0.01
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper (3,726 (0.06) (19,749 (0.39)
Minority interest from the Operating Partnershiprinome from discontinued
operations 254 — 1,53¢ —
Funds from operations $ 43,45¢$ 071% 56,55(9% 0.91
Weighted average shares outstanding) 61,05( 61,90(

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdieiCommon Stock equivalen
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

The effects of potential changes in interest ratesdiscussed below. Our market risk discussioludtes “forward-looking statements”
and represents an estimate of possible changedrivdlue or future earnings that would occur assgniypothetical future movements
interest rates. These disclosures are not pregdieators of expected future effects, but only datbrs of reasonably possible effects.
result, actual future results may differ materiditym those presented. See “Managemsebi'scussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionl
Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Reseg”and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenfents description of our accounti
policies and other information related to thesariitial instruments.

To meet in part our longerm liquidity requirements, we borrow funds atamnbination of fixed and variable rates. Borrowingeler ou
revolving credit facility bear interest at varialoltes. Our long-term debt, which consists of sed¢@nd unsecured lortigrm financings and tl
issuance of unsecured debt securities, typicalyrdbterest at fixed rates although some loans ibearest at variable rates. Our interest
risk management objectives are to limit the impgddhterest rate changes on earnings and cash #mggo lower our overall borrowing co:
To achieve these objectives, from time to time wéeeinto interest rate hedge contracts such adarsplswaps, caps and treasury
agreements in order to mitigate our interest riste with respect to various debt instruments. Wendbhold or issue these derivative contr
for trading or speculative purposes.

As of March 31, 2008, we had $1,292 million of fixeate debt outstanding. The estimated aggregatentarket value of this debt
March 31, 2008 was $1,262 million. If interest mtecrease by 100 basis points, the aggregateraiket value of our fixed rate debt a:
March 31, 2008 would decrease by $58 million. temest rates decrease by 100 basis points, thegeafgrfair market value of our fixed r
debt as of March 31, 2008 would increase by $6H#anil

As of March 31, 2008, we had $311 million of vatebate debt outstanding that was not protectethteyest rate swaps. If the weigh
average interest rate on this variable rate detbble@n 100 basis points higher or lower duringlthenonths ended March 31, 2008, our intt
expense relating to this debt would increase oradee by approximately $3.1 million.

For a discussion of the $100 million of interederawaps in effect at March 31, 2008, see “Manag¢imd®iscussion and Analysis
Financial Conditions and Results of Operations guldity and Capital Resources — Interest Rate Hegdictivities.” If LIBOR interest rate
increase or decrease by 100 basis points, the gajgréair market value of these swaps as of Matgt2308 would decrease or incre
respectively, by approximately $0.6 million.

In addition, we are exposed to certain losses @é dhent of nonperformance by the counterpartiexutite swaps. We expect
counterparties, which are major financial instias, to perform fully under the swaps. Howevei ifounterparty defaults on its obligati
under a swap, we could be required to pay theditdls on our debt, even if such rates were in exckthe rate in the contract.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure costaold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbatition required to be discloser
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SiEGecorded, processed, summarized and reportddnvtiie time periods specified in
SEC'’s rules and forms. As defined in Rule 134e) under the Exchange Act, disclosure controts grocedures include, without limitati
controls and procedures designed to ensure thatniaftion required to be disclosed by us is accuredleand communicated to ¢
management, including our CEO and CFO, to allowelyrdecisions regarding required disclosure. OuOC&d CFO believe that ¢
disclosure controls and procedures were effectivheaend of the period covered by this Quartesprt.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting designedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting éithe preparation of financial statements for exakipurposes in accordance with gene
accepting accounting principles. As defined in RUBa15(f) under the Exchange Act, internal control ofieancial reporting includes thc
policies and procedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that in mreaisie detail accurately and fairly reflect our sactions and dispositions of assets;

e provide reasonable assurance that transactioneeepeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accorda
with generally accepting accounting principles, athét receipts and expenditures are being made onlaccordance wi
authorizations of management and directors;

e provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wselisposition of our assets t
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

There were no changes in our internal control direancial reporting during the first quarter of Z¢hat materially affected, or ¢
reasonably likely to materially affect, our inteFgantrol over financial reporting.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are from time to time a party to a variety afdeproceedings, claims and assessments arisitige inrdinary course of our busine
We regularly assess the liabilities and contingemai connection with these matters based on tastlaformation available. For those mai
where it is probable that we have incurred or witlur a loss and the loss or range of loss carebsonably estimated, the estimated lo
accrued and charged to income in the ConsolidabeanEial Statements. In other instances, becaugkeofincertainties related to both
probable outcome and amount or range of loss,sonadle estimate of liability, if any, cannot bed@aBased on the current expected outc
of such matters, none of these proceedings, claimsssessments is expected to have a materialssdeffect on our business, finan
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On January 23, 2008, a director of the Companytedeto receive 3,696 shares of common stock irvatertransaction exempt from-
registration requirements pursuant to Section d{2he Securities Act upon payout of fees defepadsuant to the fivgeear payout provisic
of a prior deferred compensation plan for directors

On January 30, 2008, the Company issued an aggrefat,688 shares of restricted stock to membfettseoBoard of Directors in prive

offerings exempt from the registration requiremegnissuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities ActtBshares vest ratably on an annual |
over a four-year term.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description
31.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act
31.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act
31.3 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saelk-Oxley Act
32.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saelk-Oxley Act
32.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act
32.3 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscontain any untrue statement of a material faamit to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiieotircumstances under which such statements mark, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlyprie

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cther financial information included in this gtealy report, fairly present in i
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaara for, the periods presentet
this quarterly report

4. The Registrars other certifying officers and | are responsilde dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidiatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this quarterly reparbieing preparet

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finaho#gporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princijj

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presentéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure control$ procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetlis report based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the Registsainternal control over financial reporting thatcoored during th
Registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter that haterialy affected, or is reasonably likely to madly affect, the Registrarg’
internal control over financial reportin

5. The Registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobmiver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and theifG@Gdmmittee of Registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theivjan
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknssisethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refioaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a signifitdatin the Registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 9, 2008

/sl EDWARD J.FRITSCH
Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Offic







Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscontain any untrue statement of a material faamit to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiieotircumstances under which such statements mark, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlyprie

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cther financial information included in this gtealy report, fairly present in i
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaara for, the periods presentet
this quarterly report

4. The Registrars other certifying officers and | are responsilde dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidiatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this quarterly reparbieing preparet

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finaho#gporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princijj

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presentéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure control$ procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetlis report based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the Registsainternal control over financial reporting thatcoored during th
Registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter that haterialy affected, or is reasonably likely to madly affect, the Registrarg’
internal control over financial reportin

5. The Registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobmiver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and theifG@Gdmmittee of Registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theivjan
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknssisethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refioaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a signifitdatin the Registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 9, 2008

/s/I TERRY L. STEVENS
Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi







Exhibit 31.%

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Daniel L. Clemmens, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscontain any untrue statement of a material faamit to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiieotircumstances under which such statements mark, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this quarterlyprie

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cther financial information included in this gtealy report, fairly present in i
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaara for, the periods presentet
this quarterly report

4. The Registrars other certifying officers and | are responsilde dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and we ha

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidiatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this quarterly reparbieing preparet

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finaho#gporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princijj

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presentéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure control$ procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetlis report based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the Registsainternal control over financial reporting thatcoored during th
Registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter that haterialy affected, or is reasonably likely to madly affect, the Registrarg’
internal control over financial reportin

5. The Registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobmiver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and theifG@Gdmmittee of Registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theivjan
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknssisethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refioaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a signifitdatin the Registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 9, 2008

/s/DANIEL L. CLEMMENS
Daniel L. Clemmen
Vice President and Chief Accounting Offic







Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwso®roperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form QOfor the period endt
March 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities andtiexge Commission on the date hereof (the “Repdrt'Bdward J. Fritsch, President :
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursugh®@b of the Sarbané3xley Act of 200z
that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeo& 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl EDWARD J.FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Offic
May 9, 200€







Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwso®roperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form QOfor the period endt
March 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities and HEexge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepaditJerry L. Stevens, Senior Vi
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Comparertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adbpiersuant to 8§ 906 of the Sarbaridey
Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeo& 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.

/sI TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
May 9, 200¢







Exhibit 32.¢

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwso®roperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form QOfor the period endt
March 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities andhzxge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtDaniel L. Clemmens, Vice Presid

and Chief Accounting Officer of the Company, certibursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted put$od906 of the Sarban€&xley Act o
2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeo& 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/DANIEL L. CLEMMENS

Daniel L. Clemmens

Vice President and Chief Accounting Offic
May 9, 200€




